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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603.271-9544 l'800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-27M332 TDD Access: 1-800-735.2964 www.dhhs.nh.8ov

July 8. 2024

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to enter
Into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Cross Roads House, Inc. {VC #166570),
Portsmouth, NH to add funding for the continued provision of a housing services continuum of care
project, by increasing the price limitation by $45,228 from $1,647,712 to $1,692,940 with no change to
the contract completion date of July 31, 2027, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 19, 2023, item #17.

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal
Years 2026, 2027 and 2028, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
multiple $377,601 $0 $377,601

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
multiple $411,928 $41,459 $453,387

2026 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
multiple $411,928 $3,769 $415,697

2027 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
multiple $411,928 $0 $411,928

2028 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
multiple $34,327 $0 $34,327
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

.Total i 51,647,712 $45,228 $1,692,940

EXPLAtiATION

^ ■This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements originally
approved as sole source be Identified as sole source. Federal regulations require ail procurement efforts
for these services to be directed by HUD through an annual Continuum of Care (CoC) competitive
application process. The Department must contract with the vendor selected as a result of this HUD
process. HUD awarded additional funding for the Permanent Supportive Housing program on May 20.
2024.

The purpose of this request Is to allow the Department to increase funding, as provided by HUD,
under federal requirements, for the Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) program. The additional funds
will support the Contractor's provision of scattered-site, long-term, tenant-based rental assistance for
participants with a disability, as defined by HUD, concentrated primarily In Merrimack and Rocklngham
counties. PSH includes community and mainstream supportive services designed to meet the individual
needs of program participants without t>elng a prerequisite for rental or leasing assistance.

Approximately 28 adults will be served at any given time annually through the PSH program.

The Contractor, utilizing the federally required Housing First model, provides a PSH program and
works to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing connections to
community and mainstream services.

The Department will continue to monitor services through the review of annual reports provided
by the Contractor and by conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual requirements.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportiye services available, which may lead to vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the Department
will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding for these
and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Statewide;

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 14.267, FAIN NH0095L1T002308.

In the event the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

r
This Amendment to the Continuum of Care CRM contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and Cross Roads House, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 19, 2023 (Item #17), the Contractor agreed to peilorm certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW therefore; in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,692,940

2. Modify Exhibit C. Payment.Terms; Section 1.1, to read:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing
Assistance (Public Law 102-550), by the US Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Continuum of Care Program, as awarded on March 28, 2023,
Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 14.267, FAIN NH0095L1T002207; and as awarded on
May 20, 2024, FAIN NH0095L1T002308.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-1 Budget, Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit C-2, Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-2 Budget, Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit C-3, Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-3 Budget, Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-4, Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-4 Budget, Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. • ■

DS

m
Cross Roads House, Inc. Conlraclor Initials^ ■

SS-2024-DBH-07-CONTI-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 Dale_Z^^^^^
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

7/9/2024

Date

—DoeuSlgn*<l by:

S-
—2A0FEC7De-.B44F3...

Name: Katja s. fox

Title. Director

Cross Roads House, Inc.

7/8/2024

Date

-OocuSlgned by:

ILyviU
Ar;;iT^

Title: Executive Director

Cross Roads House, Inc.

SS-2024-DBH-07-CONTI-01-A01
V. 7.12.23

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to'form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^DocuSlgnad by.

7/9/2024

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Cross Roads House, Inc.

SS-2024-OBH-07-CONTI-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 24, 19S2. 1 further certify

that all fees and, documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 62166

Certificate Number: 0006193525

Op

Urn

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretarj'of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORmr

,  JasBH Gr^CiitiB. ^ hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corpcyation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretafy/Offlcer of Roads House Inc.

•/

Signature ofiElected Officer

Name: Jason Gregolre

Title: Surt^*^

{Corp'6ratioh/LLC Name)' " j

■27The'folI6winais a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board o(pirectors/s^^^ duly called and ;
KkdonW^^S at which a quorum of the Directorsteharehpldere.were present and voting. j

(Date) . i
VOTED: That Wlldolfo AlVelO, ExgCUtlVG DlrSCtOr finav list more than one person) ^

(Name and Title of Go'ntfact Sig'hatory) I

Is duly authorized on behalf House, Inc. contracts or agreements with the State . _ . '
(Narhe'bf Corporation/ LLC) [

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all ^
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full forcejand:effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is ateched. This authority yrasiyaNd ^Irty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days'frqm-.the date of thi's^CerWcate of Authpri^Jl fur^er ̂
that it is understood that the State of New Harnpshire wljUely on this:c»rtificate:ps evW
listed above currently occupy the posrtlon(8) indicated and'^at they hayeTujl authpi^ to, bjnd the cor^ratip^^^^^^
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

July 2. 2024

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACCmP* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OA'TE (MM/OO/YYYY)

05/20/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the pollcy,''certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s),

PRODUCER

RSC Insurance Brokerage, inc.

One New Hampshire Avenue

Suite 125

Portsmouth NH 03801

name"^ Melisa Meeks
(603)778-8985

AOMESS- '"f^s^'^siSlrisk-strategies.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE >' NAICt

INSURER A' Philadelphia indemnity Insurance Company 18058

INSURED

Cross Roads House, Inc.

600 Lafayette Rd

Portsmouth NH 03801

INSURER B: Philadelphia Insurance Companies

INSURER c I Yalley Forge Insurance Brokerage

INSURER D - ^ouni Vernon Fire Insurance Company
INSURER E ;

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL2421924936 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
poLicy kff

(MM/DO/YYVYITYPE OF INSURANCE
AODL

INSO

5UBR

WVO POUCYNUMBER
POLICY EXP

(mm/ooWyyy) uMtrrs
INSR
LTR

X COMMERCML GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS^xWOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES lEa occutT»ne«>

PHPK2644989

MED EXP (Any on* p<r»on)

01/10^024 01/10/2025
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE UMfTAPPUES PER:

PRO
JECTPOUCY □ 515^ □

OTHER;

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Damage to Premises

1.000.000

5.000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABILTTY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED'SINeLE UMIT
(Ea »ecia»iti
BODILY INJURY (Par parton)

OVWED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OVWED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2a45007 01/10/2024 01/10/2025 BODILY INJURY (Par accWant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par accktam)

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 6,000,000

PHUBa97054 01/10/2024 01/10/2025 AGGREGATE 6,000,000

DED X RETENTIONS 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY y, ̂
ANY PROPRIETORfl'ARTNER/EXeCUTlVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandalocy In NH)
if ya*, daaerlba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

□

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

SATIS0482202 01/10/2024 01/10/2025 E.L EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - POUCY UMIT 1,000,000

ND02008762L 01/10/2024 01/10/2025

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addllional Ramarka Schadula, may ba aRachad If mora apaea la raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street v-

Concord NH 03301

'  1

V

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)

(D1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Cross Roads House Mission:

At Cross Roads House:

• We protect men, women and children experiencing homelessness in the
Greater Seacoast area from exposure and hunger.

• We provide secure, transitional shelter for those seeking to break the
cycle of homelessness.

• We support individuals and families by providing them with the opportunity
to move with dignity and purpose to stable and decent housing.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 30, 2022

with Summarized Financial Information

for the Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Sanders & Karcher

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cross Roads House, inc.
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as
of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Cross Roads House, Inc. as of June 30, 2022,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Cross
Roads House, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation ,and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the • United States of America; and for the design, .implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. . ~ '

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Gross Roads House, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the , date that the financial statements are
availablre to be-f-iasued-r^

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements .as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or • error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes pur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not. absolute assurance and therefore is- not a guarantee that an audit
conducted - in ac.cordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Govern/Tjeht Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
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when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit ' in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards arid Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional .skepticism
throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks, of material misstatement of . the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a teat basis, evidence regarding the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. .

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control irelevant to the audit in
order to' design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal control!'
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates, made by
management, as well as evaluate the overall "presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events,
considered'in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Cross
Roads House, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern" for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to coiranunicate . with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit> significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Report on Summarized .Comparative Information

We have previously audited Cross Roads House, Inc.'s financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated September 27, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative

pnrVO ti- ITCi-UXli Uij UHvpA ^ ±a

consistent,' in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

-2-



Docusign Envelope ID; 6E660891.A521-4863-9914-D5656BD59877

Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 3

j  ' .

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulationa Part 200,. Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and' was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other procedures in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of "America. In pur opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements.as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards,"we have also issued our report
dated September 26, 2022, on our consideration of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and "on our tes.ts of its compliance with
certain - provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope.of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and .the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on. the effectiveness of
Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That, report is an integral part of an audit performed in^ accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Cross Roads House, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sanders & Karche]

Portsmouth, New Hampshire
November 23, 2022



ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Rental receivabl

Grants receivabl

Unconditional pr
Prepaid esqjenses
Total"current

^mises to give

I'ssets

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT

depreciation of

respectively

CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,

, net of accumulated

:;2,248,406 & $2,058,412,

OTHER ASSETS

Cash and marketable securities, long-term
reserve

Beneficial inter^

Total other as

TOTAL ASSETS

St in assets held by others
$ets

2022

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restriction

$ , 1,849,937 :$
6,^301

14,800

48,006

1,919,044

4,900,392

2,056,884.

2,056,884

$  8.876.320

86,701

10,067

96,768

144,467

144,467

$  241.235

Total

1,849,937

6,301

86,701

24,867

48,006

2,015,812

4,900,392

2,056,884

144,467

2,201,351

$  9.117.555

Vhe accompanying notes are ah integral part of these financial statements.
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2021

Total

1,193,855

4,908

74,512

30,336

34,262

1,337,873

4,962,653

2,192,431

162,833

2,355,264

$  8.655.790



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITI

Accounts payable
Deferred income

Long-term debt,

Security deposit
Accrued payroll
Accrued expenses

Total current

LONG-TERM DEBT, n

Principal amount
Less unamortized

Long term debt,

Total liabilitl

i

NET ASSETS

Without donor re

. Board Designate^
■Undesignated
With donor restr

Total net asse

j

.

:

TOTAL LIABILITIES

^  CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

June .30,

2022

Without Donor
Restrictions

With Donor
Restriction Total

ES

current -portion
3 - Rental

items

LiaJbilities

t of current portion:

debt issuance costs
net

es

trictions

ctions

26,510
150,000
23,901
7,296

42,837
11,739

262,283

512,147
2,448

509,699
771,982

2,056,884
6,047,454

s

AND NET ASSETS

241,235
241,2358,104,338

8.876.320 $ 241.235

26,510
150,000
23,901
7,296

42,837
11,739

262,283

512,147
2,448

509,699
771,982"

2,056,884
6,047,454

241,235
8,345,573

9.117.555

"he accompanying notes arc an.integral part of these financial statements
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2021

Total

101,855

22,667
5,816

84,605
11,650

226,593

535,541
2,610

532,93l"
759,524

2,192,431
5,462,049

241,786
7,896,266

8.655.790



PUBLIC SUPPORT AND

PUBLIC SUPPORT

Government grants
Town Warrants

Donations

Rental income

Fundraising, net <
and $13,065, res

Total public supi
REVENUES

Investment return

Total public suj

NET ASSETS RELEASEI

Satisfaction of us

Satisfaction of ti

Total net assets

Total public su
■ -net assets rele

EXPENSES

Program services

General and admini

Fundraising
Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSET

NET .ASSETS, Beginni

NET ASSETS, End of

i

CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended June 30,

2022

Without Donor

Restrictions

REVENUES:

With Donor

Restrictions

1,189,970

97,925

Total

f direct expenses of $63,016
pectively
ort

port- and revenues

FROM RESTRICTIONS

age restrictions
me restrictions

released from -restrictions

Export, revenues and
ased from"restrictions

(

1,629,822

105,354

555,050

2,290,226

236,191).

2,054,035

strative

1,282,220

6,226

1,288,446

3,342,481

2,162,537

497,781

232,305

1,287,895,

1,287,895

( 1,282,220)

(  6,226)

( 1,288,446)

(  551)

1,189/970

97,925

1,629,822

105,354

555,050

3,578,121

236,191

3,341,930

{

n

2,892,623

449,858.

g of year 7,654,480 -

year ' $ 8.104.338

Jhe accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

-6-

551)

241,786

241.235- $

3,341,930

2,162,537

497,781

232,305

2,892,623

449,307

7,896,266

2021

Total

$  1,739,067

110,070

1,387,469

110,106

481,621

3,828,333

385,295

4,213,628

4,213,628

2,094,473

426,739

232,446

2,753,658

1,459,970

6,436,296

8.345.573 $ 7.896.266

statements



aL

eE

Tok
e

Management s

Salaries and

Employee ben
Payroll taxes

Professional

Bad debt

Investment fe

Office and ad

Heat

Electricity
Water and se

Repairs and
Interest-

Insurance - .

Food

Direct servic

Telephone

Covid expense
Residential s

Volunteer & b

Depreciation
Staff & :progr

T0T7\LS ,

CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENT OP FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended June 30,

2022

aries

wages

its

fees

es

Tiinistration

r

intenance

ss

srvices

Dard development
md amortization

im development

2021

Program

Services

General

and Admin

Fund-

Raising Total Total

$  115,351 S 197,139 $ 68,681 $ 381,171. $ 322,041
402,938 95,018 49,488 547,444 737,387
92,715 22,861 11,431 127,007 127,271
99,007 24,413 12,206 135,626 100,332
5,065 19,988 - 25,053 15,905

- 436 1,006 1,442 13,657
- .  6,435 - 6,435 459

13 ,-451 33,693 32,307 , 79,451 78,235
16,901 3,138 1, 594 21,683 18,956
36,433 6,717 3,951 . 47,101 38,299
21,169 3,570 2,100 26,839 24,296

150,394 26,675 ■ 13,337 190,406 142,802
21,623 5,332 2,666 29,621 30,780
47,313 11,666 5,833 64,812 89,090

27,061 - - 27iD61 17,438

368,643 - - 368,643 297,233
9,082 9,900 3,300 22,282 25,067

257,, 951 - - 257,951 458,184
337,349 -

- 337,349 -

- - 3,750 3,750 24,599
139,012 30,723 20,421 190,156 ■ 186,295

1, 079 27 234 1,340 5,332

S-2.162. 537 $ 497,781 $ 232.305 $ 2.892.623 $ 2.753". 658

'?he accompanying notes are an. integral part of these, financial statement-s.

-7-



Docusign Envelope ID; 6E660891-A521-4863-9914-D6656BD59877 .

CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from public support
Cash received from investment return

Cash paid, to employees and suppliers
Cash paid, for interest

Net cash provided by operating, activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net unrealized investment gain (loss)
Cash received from operating reserve
Cash paid for long-term reserve
Cash paid for property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for debt reduction

Net increase in cash

Cash at beginning of year

CASH AT END OF YEAR -

2022 • 2021

$  3,720,008. $ 3,726,384
67,127 32,203

(2,802,134) (2,448,382)
(  29,621) ■ ( 30,780)

955,380 1,279,425

284,952!

135,547

127,733!

316,390

( 1,038,922.)

(  491,206)

(  277,138) (1,213,738)

(  22,160) ( 21,002)

656,082

1,193,855

44,685

1,149,170

$  1.849.937 $ 1.193!855
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS -(CONTINUED)
Years Ended June 30,

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET- ASSETS TO

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash from operating activities.:

Net unrealized investment (gain) loss
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Unconditional promises to give
Prepaid e:^enses
Beneficial interest in assets held by others

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable '
Security deposi.ts-Rental
Deferred income

Accrued payroll items
Accrued expenses

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2022 2021

449,307 $ 1,459,970

284,952

189,994

162

1,393)

12,189)

5,469

13,744)

18,366

75,345)

1,480

150,000

41,768)

89 (

316.390)

186,133

162

12,888

58,796

6,367

4,020

36,702)

74,737

760)

180,000)

12,204'

2,000)

506,073 ( 180,545)

955.380 $ 1.279.425
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE A - SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Cross Roads House, Inc. (Cross Roads House), was organized March 24, 1982, but
was essentially activated January 1, 1984. The purpose of the organization is to
provide safe and supportive emergency and transitional shelter to individuals and
families experiencing homelessness in southeastern New Hampshire..

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect, certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

income Taxes

Cross" Roads,Hous.e received a letter of determination dated July 28, 1986 from the
Internal Revenue Service advising it that it qualified as a non-profit
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore,
it is not subject to income tax. Cross Roads House is not classified as a private
foundation.

Financial Statement Presentation . •
Cross ROads House reports information regarding its "financial position and
activities according to two classes of ne.t assets; net assets with donor
restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. The Organization accounts
for contributions as either with or without donor restrictions depending on the
existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net a'ssets without donor restrictions upon
satisfaction of the time' or purpose of the restriction.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of these financial statements all non-custodial highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of less than three months or investments
with a per share value constant at one dollar are considered to . be cash
equivalents, Cash equivalents were $0 and $125,133 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. • . '

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from the State in support of
homeless operations. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on
historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding accounts
receivable at "the end of each year. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, management
considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance
for doubtful accounts is.required.

Basis of Accounting

Income and expenses are reported on the accrual basis, , which means that income is
recognized as" it is earned and expenses are recognized as they are incurred
whether or not cash is received or paid out at that time.

-10-
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events .have been evaluated through' November 23, 2022, the date the
■financial statements were available to be issued. ^
Promises to Give/Contributions
Cross Roads House accounts for contributions without donor restrictions and with
donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor
restrictions. Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions upon'satisfaction of the time or purpose restrictions.
An allowance for uncollectible unconditional promises is established based on
historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding unconditional
pledges at the end of..each year. As of June 30, 2022, management considers all
pledges to be fully collectible.

All unconditional promises to give are current and consist of the following, as
of June 30,

2022 2021

Wentworth Gala event $ 14,100 $ 24,600
Client Receivable 700 i,295
Total unconditional promises .to give $ 14.800- $ 25.895

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, "costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition
The Organization's investments as of June 30, 2022 are stated at fair value.
Shares of the separate investment accounts are valued at quoted mar)cet prices,
which represent the net value of shares held by the Organization at year-end.
Purchases and sales of securities are -recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest
income is . recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-
dividend date. As of June 30, "2022, investments have a mar)cet value of
$2,056,884, cost basis of $2,105,547 and unrealized cumulative losses of $48,663.

-11-
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year ,Ended June 30, 2022

j  '

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property , and equipment are recorded at cost for those items which have been
purchased, and at estimated fair market value for those items which have been

donated. The cost of buildings and improvements is recovered using the straight-
line method over estimated useful lives of 10 to 33 years. The cost of furniture,
fixtures and equipment is recovered using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives of 2 to 7 years. Property and equipment as of June 30, 2022,
consisted of the following:

Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Total property ̂ d equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

$ 217,266

6,453,469

478,063

7,148,798

2,248,406

4.900.392

Donated Services

Contributions of" services are recognized in the financial statements if the
services enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are
provided "by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021, there were no amounts for donated services.

•v.

Donated Marketable Securities

Donated marketable securities are valued at fair market . value. Mar)cetab.le
securities are immediately sold arid are included in the statement of activities,
as donations. D.onated marketable securities of $89,408 .and $77,329 were received
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS

Cross Roads House is. a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation, ^rsuant to the terms of the resolution
establishing this fund, property contributed . to The New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the benefit of Cross Roads
41©use-:—in—a©corda-nce-wirth—its—spend±ng-po±tcy7—the—Founda1:i'on~Tnake8 dirstrtbutions"
from the fund to-Cross Roads House. -The distributions are approximately 4.00% of
the market value of the fund per year.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE B -■ BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS (continued)

Activity in this endowment fund consisted of the following for the years ended
June 30,

2022 2021
Beginning, fair.value, 7/1 $ 162,833 $ 126,131
Total return { 11,655) 43,677
Foundation fee ( 485) ( 459)
Distributions ' ( 6,226) ( 6,516)
Ending, fair value, 6/30 $ 144.467 $ 162;833

Distributions represent amounts distributed to Cross Roads House and are shown as
unrestricted dividends.

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

Cross Roads House records its. mar)cetable securities with readily determinable
fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the
statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
change in net assets, in.the statement of activities.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets
measured at fair value.

Common stocks, corporate bonds and U.S. government securities: Valued at •
the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual
securities are traded.

Mutual funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held by the plan at
year end.

The methods described above may produce a .fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore., while the Organization believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting
date.

The Organization reports under the Fair Value Measurements, which established a
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value
hierarchy that- prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices
inactive markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR,VALUE (continued)

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the

cdDility to access.

Investments, all at level 1, at fair value consisted, of the following as of
June 30,

2022 2021

Cash & equivalents
Domestic equities
Domestic fixed income

Other

TOTALS

$  79,941

1,413,284

340,640

223,019

$  . 125,133

1,429,966

637,332

$ 2.056.884 $ 2.192.431

NOTE D - ACCRUED PAYROLL ITEMS

Accrued payroll items consisted of the following as of June 30,

2022 2021

Payroll and payroll taxes
Earned time

Totals

NOTE E - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

$  22,330
20,507

$  42.837

$  '9,163
75,442

$  84.605

Cross. Roads House receives money under various state and federal grants.
Under the terms of these grants, Cross Roads House is required to use the,
money within the grant period for purposes specified in the grant proposal.
If expenditures of the grant were found not to have been made in compliance
with the proposal. Cross Roads House may be required to repay the grantor's
funds.

NOTE F -■ LINE OF CREDIT

Bank with a current interest rate of 4.75%. The interest rate is directly
tied to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate with no margin. . Accordingly, any
changes to this rate will change the organization's line of credit rate.
There was no outstanding balance as of June 30, 2022.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINAI^CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE G - IjONG-TERM DEBT

Note payable, Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $1,293, 4.69% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
'August 2037.

Note payable. Provident Bank, monthly
"payment is $2,070, 5.62% interest; secured
by property and equipment;, note matures
April 2038.

Note payable, Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $953, 5.62% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
August 2037.

Total iong-.term debt

Current

$  7,862

10,628

5,411

$ 23.901

Long-term

$ 159,602

248,065

104,480

$ 512^147

Total

$ 167,464

258,693

.109,891

$ 536.048

Future principal loan payments are as follows for the years ended.

June 30, .2023 $ 23,901

2024". 25,203
2025. . . . . . 26,575

2026. . . . . . 28,024

2027. . . . . 29,552

Thereafter. . . 402,793

The Organization is following updated guidelines regarding ■ debt issuance
costs. , The Organization has reclassed the asset, prepaid closing costs, as
unamortized debt issuance costs, a liability that offsets the long-term debt
of the Organization,. The total unamortized debt, issuance costs as of June
30, 2022 and 2021 are $2,448 and $2,610, respectively.

NOTE H - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

As of June 30, 2022, Cross Roads House had a cash balance held by a bank that
was in .excess: of the amount insured by the Federal, Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The unihsurpd amount was howPVPT-^ any in.

excess is fully covered by the Massachusetts Depositors Insurance Fund (DIP).
The DIF is., a private, industry-sponsored insurance fund that insures all
deposits above FDIC limits for their member banks.
Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by an investment brokerage firm
that is insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation.
Cross Roads Hoiise derived 36% of its operating ,revenue from government
agencies.

-15-.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE I - GREENLEAF APARTMENTS

Cross Roads House purchased a 12-unit single room occupancy building in
Portsmouth, NH in April 2018. Applicants must meet certain requirements as
defined in a Tenant Selection Plan to qualify for these low-income units.
Rental income was $105,354 and rental expenses totaled $63,022 for the year
■ended June 30, 2022". Rental expenses are included in the statement of
functional expenses as program expenses.

note: J - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

As part of Cross Roads House's liquidity management, it has a policy to
structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. In addition, the organization
invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments. To
help manage unanticipated liquidity needs, the organization has a committed
line of credit in the amount of $300, 000, which it could draw upon. The
organization also has a Board designated reserve of $2,056,884. Although the
organization does not intend to spend from its reserve other than amounts
appropriated for general expenditure as part of "its annual budget approval
and appropriation process, amounts from its reserve could be made available
if necessary.

NOTE K - REVENUE RECOGNITION FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

s

On July 1, 2021, the Organization adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU)
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and all s\ibsequent amendments
to the ASU (collectively, ASC 606) , which creates a single framework for
recognizing revenue from contracts with customers that fall Within its scope.
The majority of the Organization's revenues come from donor contributions,
including stock donations, that are outside the scope of ASC 6(}6. The
Organization's services that fall within the scope of ASC 606 are presented
within the respective .income and are recognized as revenue as the
Organization satisfies its obligation to the counterparty over a point in
time. Services within the scope of ASC 606 include rental income received
from tenant rental agreements. The adoption of ASC 606 did not result in a
change to the accounting for any of the in-scope revenue streams; as such, no
cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. For the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021 the rental receivable balance was $6,301 and $4,908, respectively.
-The—rental—l-labiliti-es consisted—of—benanL stfcurrty~depusxtSTT-For~tlTe years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 the security deposits balance was $7,296 and
$5,816, respectively. There were no rental contract assets.

NOTE L - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Board has designated a portion of its without donor restriction net
assets to be invested for long-term appreciation but remain available and may
be spent at their discretion, The Board has voluntarily designated $2,056,884
and $2,192,431 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

-16-
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OTHER INFORMATION
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, :INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OP FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended June 30, 2022

Federal Grantor

Pass-Through Grantor
Program Title

ns Dept of Housing and Urban

Development:
Grantor City„of Dover
CDBG

Grantor City of Portsmouth
CDBG

Grantor City of Rochester
CDBG

Grantor City of Portsmouth CV
CDBG

CDBG-Entitiement Grants Cluster

Grantor State of NH

Emergency Solutions Grant CV

Grantor State of NH

Continuum'of Care

Permanent Housing

Total US Dept of Housing and
Urban Development

US Dept of the Treasury - Cares
Act:
Grantor State of NH

Coronavirus Relief Fund

XOVID-GOEERR ^ ^

Total US Dept of the Treasury
Cares Act .

TOTALS

Federal Agency or Program Federal
CFDA Pass-Through or Award Disburse-

l^umber Number (s) Amount ments

14.218

14.218

14.218

14.218

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

$  9,000 $ 9,000

183,400 150,475

10,000

16,500

10,000

16,500

218,900 185,975

14.231 102-500731 361,100 213,028

14.267 177203-B003 367,470 328,707

947,470 727,710

-21. 019—1&6B7-Q-B&Q-1 —l-a4-r5-3-9 i-9-lT4-i-5-

124,539 101,415

$1.072.009 $ . 829.125
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC..
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal
grant activity of Cross Roads House, Inc. and is presentedon the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with.the
requirements of Uniform Guidance. . Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented or used in preparation of the financial
statements.

NOTE B - FEDERAL INDIRECT COST RATE

The Organization has not elected- to lise the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

-18
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE and OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.? PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of Cross Roads House, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2022 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows
for the year, then ended, 'and the related • notes to the financial statierhent's and have

issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered
Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting {internal
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Cross Roads
House, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal control.

,A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatemerit of the entity's financial statements will not,be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on-a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet.important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

I  ■

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section.and v;as not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during-our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. v.v; "

Report on Con^liahce and Other Matters '

As part of.obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cross Roads House, Inc.'s
"tinanciai statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our, audit, and accordingly, we do not esq^ress
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance's of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

-19-
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Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 2

Purpose of this Report

The pu^ose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit, performed in accordance with
Government. Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Sanders & Karcher

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

November 23, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors • '

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Bach Major Federal Program

We have audited Cross Roads House, Ihc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit'in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. Cross Roads House, Inc.'s major
federal•programs are identified in the sumniary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Cross Roads House, Inc. complied, in all material respects; with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on -each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2022.^

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under
those standards and the Uniform" Guidance are further described in' the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Cross Roads House, Inc. and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Cross Roads House,
Inc's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of ̂ nagement for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and
for the design, implementation, and mairitehance of effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, states, regulations, rules, and provisions
of contracts or grants agreements applicable to Cross Roads House, Inci's federal
programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our .objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether matprral

noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether
due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Cross Roads house; Inc.'s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted-
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when
it exists. The ris)c of not detecting material noncompliance resulting- from fraud is
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Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.
Page 2

higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is. a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would Influence
the judgement made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Cross
Roads House, Inc.^s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program
as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.
Government Audicinsr Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional
throughout the audit.

judgement and maintain professional skepticism

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to,fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Cross
Roads House, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

i-

•  Obtain an understanding of Cross Roads House, Inc.'s internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to ,design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in, accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Cross Roads House,
Inc.'s. internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no. such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance * regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing ' of the audit and any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we
identified-during the audit. . ■ . . .

Report on internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing• their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance' with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness 'in internal control over compliance is. a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over complia'ncei such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a. federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely hasis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination 'of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 3

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the Hmited purpose
described in .the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section
above arid was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations., during our audit we did ' not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above." However, material weaknesses, or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that we're not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness, of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is, solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report
is not suitable for any other purpose.

Sanders & Karcher

Portsmouth, New Hampshire
November 23, 2022
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended June 30, 2022

Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:,Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

■\
•  Material weakness(es) identified: yes x no

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes x none

reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes x no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

•  Material weakness(es) identified: yes X no

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes x none

reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed-that are required to be reported
in accordance with Section 516(a)? yes x no
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

Year ended June 30, 2022

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

14 .267

21.019

■ Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Continuum of Care

Permanent Supportive Housing
Coronavirus Relief Fund

COVID GOFERR

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs

yes X no

$ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-ris)c auditee?

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

NONE REPORTED.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE REPORTED.

Section iV - Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Questioned Coats

There were no findings in fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
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1

Name Affiliation* Committees

Adams, Michael Architect Building

Ambrogi, Michael Novocure

Bear, Bob Retired Program

Belimare, Chris

Aiista Networks

Development,

Governance, Program

Bresette, Suzanne Strat6g6 Partners
Executive, Program,

Development

Brown, Bob

Treasurer

Self

employed/consultant
Finance ' '

Clark, Lisa B2W Development

Cohen, Ken Psychiatrist Program

Dillon, Denis McLane Middlelon

Nominating &

Governance,

Development

Drew, Katliryn

Merrill L>'nch Wealth

Management/Bank of

America Corp.

Nominating &

Governance

Gibb, Brian Daimmond Group Program

Goddard, Steve Retired Development

Gregoire, Jason Sheehan Phinney Governance

Mathews, Shaun Retired Finance, Program

Moore, Vanda

Secretary
Sprague Energy

Executive,

Development

Pace, Joe
Full time

Dad/Selectman/author
Development

Palmer, Theresa
State of New

Hampshire
Program

Scourby, Lex
Chicken of the Sea

Frozen Foods

Executive, Finance,

Nominating &

Governance,

Development

Silva, Chuck

Vice President
Retired

Executive, Nominating

& Governance

St. Jean, Ben

President

Clipper-Strategic

Consulting, LLC

Executive, Finance,

Building

Stevens, Rob

Rector, St. John's

Episcopal Church

Tiemey, Gillian Uniguest, Inc. Governance

Williamson, Andrea Edward Jones
Finance

Worboys, Mary Lee Retired Program

Town of Residence
Term

Began

Term

Ends

2016 . 2025

2023 2026

2021 2024

2020 2023

2007 2025

2011 2023

2021 2024

2013 2025

2004 2024

1999 2024

2022 2025

2019 2025

2021 2024

2019 2025

2013 2025

2021 2024

2022 2025

V

2003 2024

2015 2024

2015 2024

2022 2025

2020 2023

2022 2025

2011 2023
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m Wildolfo Arvelo

"for ten years, I had the honor of watching Dr. Arvelo transform Great Bay Community College from a small,

unengaged community college into one of the most respected and engaged colleges in the region. One of Will's
greatest strengths is his ability to bring out the best in others. He empowers his direct reports to lead. He inspires

the community, internal and external, to believe and invest in the organizational mission. Most impressive is his

ability to move seamlessly and garner respect from students, staff, faculty, business, and community leaders.

Simply stated. Will Arvelo is a transformative leader.that enables people and organizations to achieve their best."

Michae! Fischer. Ed.P., President York County Community College

Career Profile

A dynamic, visionary, and collaborative leader with 35 years of diverse leadership experience in improving and

expanding learning, educational access and workforce and economic development opportunity. I am focused on
equity, organizational resiliency, and economic inclusion across New Hampshire communities. I am driven by my

passion for serving marginalized and underserved communities.

Key Areas of Expertise:

Leadership: Manage collaborative and effective relationships with deans, division directors, and faculty and

staff as well as business, non-profit and community leaders. Have led in facility design, construction and

management. Board development, grant writing and management, marketing and branding, fundraising,

budget development and oversight, and community outreach. Highly effective managerial skills with the

capability to adapt a leadership style to meet situational challenges while guiding teams to achieve desired

results. Deeply committed to establishing/nurturing environments of collaboration and mutual respect.

financial Management: Demonstrated ability to manage fiscal resources effectively in complex organizations.

Managed a $20 million dollar budget and $28 million in grants by consistently tying the budget process with
the strategic plan and setting clear priorities. Proven success identifying diverse funding sources and securing
new funding/revenue streams. Raised hundreds of thousands of dollars annually through private donations to

support student scholarships, classroom resources and faculty and staff development.

Strategic Planning: Worked with faculty and staff to develop a plan to increase enrollment and graduation.

Successfully served on internal and external multi-functional teams that were responsible for opening new

programs and services as well as establishing new mission, vision and values for the College (Great Bay).
Worked with other Community College System Presidents and the Chancellor on System-wide initiatives tied

to enrollment, marketing, retention, research, and collaboration with the University System and the State.

Worked with the University System and high schools to transition from high school to community college to 4-

year colleges seamlessly with such programs as Running Start, Early College, eStart, and Dual Admissions.

Student Engagement: Led efforts to include students in the College's (Great Bay) shared governance

processes through training of student leaders to serve in student government, the College's Advisory Board

and other college-wide committees. Met with students on a regular basis to gauge their experiences/progress.

Wildolfo Arvelo Page 2

Professional Experience
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Executive Director, Cross Roads House, Inc., Portsmouth, NH (2021 - Present)

■ Lead the second largest homeless shelter in New Hampshire, which houses up to 130 individuals and 12
families nightly. This includes sheltering, feeding, triaging immediate health, mental health and addiction issues

as well as working with the unhoused longer-term to get them permanently housed. Manage three facilities
which include a main homeless shelter and offices, a family shelter, and a 12-unit permanent housing complex.

Manage a $2.5 million annual budget and fundraising and grants process.
■ Manage a permanent housing facility that houses former Cross Roads House residents.
■ Lead outreach efforts with the CRH Board, the Seacoast community, media, donors and volunteers, and

partner and state agencies. Work on advocacy efforts with legislators and Governor's Office and testify before
the Legislature.
Director, New Hampshire Division of Economic Development (BEA),'Concord, NH (2018 - Present)
■ Lead the Division of Economic Development in support of business attraction, expansion and retention.
Collaborate with the Office of Workforce Opportunity and the Department of Employment Security on workforce
retention and training. Work in partnership with the community college and university systems on workforce
.training and other strategic issues. Work closely with business chambers, municipalities, and economic
development and industry groups to increase economic opportunities for NH citizens. Visit with businesses
across New Hampshire to understand their needs and priorities. Hefp to manage the State's Covid response to
businesses. Worked with SBA and FEMA on immediate and long-term strategy for business resiliency post-Covid.

■ Collaborate with the Commissioner on a 10-year economic development plan as well as post-pandemic

recovery plan for NH. Serve on a variety of state-wide community, workforce and education boards, including
SB190 (CTE), DOE K-12 Minimum Standards Task Force, State Workforce Innovation Board (SWIB), Council for
Thriving Children, Benefits Cliff Working Group, NH Learning Initiative (NHLI), National Collaborative on
Competency Based Learning (NCCBL), and Chair of the Commission on Mental Health Workforce Development.

Selected Highlights:

m Work with Governor's Office, Federal delegation, SBA, FEMA on Covid response;

■ Lead efforts on diversity, equity and inclusion. Founded Business Alliance for People of Color (BAPOC-NH);

■ Represent BEA at conferences, radio and television events; hosted "Business Matters" on 107.7FM;

President, Great Bay Community College, Portsmouth/Rochester, NH (2007 - 2017)
■ Worked with a staff and faculty of over 200 and an operational budget of $20 milliort. Led inclusive visioning,
strategic and shared governance planning retreats. Guided the development and nurturing of the senior
leadership team. Served as Community College System liaison for partnerships with the University System.
Worked with Chancellor, Presidents and System Board on System-wide improvements. Led marketing efforts in

radio, TV, print and social media. Managed $28 million dollars in grants to develop System-wide manufacturing
training capacity and a composites training center in Rochester. Recruited and on-boarded members of the
College's Advisory Board. Developed the first partnerships with adult learning programs in Dover and Exeter.

Selected Highlights:

m Oversaw $30 million of capital improvements and the building of the main college campus and a satellite
academic center; spearheaded and led fundraising efforts that raised over $2 million dollars in 6 years;
■ Spearheaded re-branding efforts to develop a new name, logo, websites and collateral;
■ Developed certificate/degree programs including NDT, CNC, Aviation, Automotive, Composites, Engineering
Transfer, Medical Assisting, Massage Therapy, Insurance, Motorcycle Technician, Helicopter Pilot, and Welding;

■ Led two successful 10-year NEASC accreditation studies and visits;

■ Worked with faculty to engage students in NSF EPSCoR and NIH undergraduate research;

m Served as principle investigator for $20MM state-wide federal grant to promote STEM/advance manufacturing.
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"Or. Wildolfo Arvelo has served as a significant mentor, making a profound impact in my life. As a transformative

leader he created a culture of excellence throughout the college as a whole. Dr. Arvelo took the time to personally

engage with students and engaged the full community and through that engagement created countless
partnerships and opportunities for students before and after graduation. He taught me many things, but most

importantly, he taught me the importance of leadership and community. I wouldn't be the person I am today had I

not been a part of the community he created. I owe so much of my professional and personal success to Dr.

Arvelo, as do so many others. Dr. Arvelo exemplifiers what it means to be a leader."

■  , Ashley Rennie, Former Student

Wildolfo Arvelo Page 3

VP: Corporate and External Relations, Benjamin Franklin Institute of Technology, Boston, MA (2004 - 2007)
■ Worked with the President on strategic initiatives. Collaborated with faculty and staff across the College.

Nurtured collaborative relationships with Boston Public Schools and local business and industry. Oversaw the

writing of the N6ASC ten-year accreditation study and visit. Wrote and managed several Federal DDL grants.

Dean of Enrollment Services (2000 - 2003) / Director of Admissions (1998 - 2000), Benjamin Franklin Institute
of Technology, Boston, MA

■ Oversaw marketing and enrollment strategies and spearheaded re-branding of the college with new name,

logo, website and collateral. Restructured Financial Aid saving the college $240,000 annually.

Educational Development Coordinator (1997-1998)/ Associate Director of Admissions (1996 -1997), Rpxbury

Community College, Boston, MA

Community Engagement

Board Memberships Include:

Founder and Chair: Business Alliance for People of Color (2020-Present) / DOE K-12 Minimum Standards Task

Force (2021) / Council for Thriving Children (2020 - 2021) / Benefits Cliff Working Group (2019 - 2021) / Chair:
Governor's Commission on Mental Health Workforce Development (2019 - 2021) / New Hampshire Learning
Initiative (2019 - Present) / Founder and Chair: Economic Vitality New Hampshire (2018 - Present) / NHSPCA

. (2018 - Present) / Small Business Development Center (2018 - 2021) / State Workforce Innovation Board (2018

- 2021) / Member: Seacoast NAACP (2018 - Present) / National Collaborative for Competency Based Learning
(2018 - Present) / Foundation for Healthy Communities (2017 - 2018) / Foundation for Seacoast Health (2015 -
2017) / New Hampshire College and University Council (2007 - 2017) / NSF EPSCoR Statewide Committee (2014

- 2016) / New Hampshire Postsecondary Education Commission (2012 - 2014) / Foundation, Community College
System of New Hampshire (2007 - 2017) / United Way of the Greater Seacoast (2011 - 2015) / UNH College of

Life Sciences &. Agriculture (2007 - 2009)

Awards and Recognition

Distinguished Leader Award: Great Bay Community College (2019) / Honorary Doctorate: Granite State College

(2018) / Dedicated Service Award: Great Bay Community College (2017) / Leadership Award: United Way of the
Greater Seacoast (2015) / Citizen of the Year-Award: Portsmouth Chamber of Commerce (2012) / Leadership
Award: Benjamin Franklin Institute of Technology (2007) / New Leader Profile: Business NH Magazine (January
2022)
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Education & Certificattons

University of Massachusetts, Boston, MA

Ed.D. in Higher Education Administration (2012)

M.S. In Public Affairs (1992) / B.A. in History (1989)

"As a former CEO of a division of a Fortune 500 Company, I had the opportunity to work closely with Dr. Will

Arvelo on a number of collaborations related to business and industry. Will has excellent interpersonal skills and is

highly focused on the mission at hand. He has the innate ability to forge meaningful and lasting relationships with

business and industry leaders. Will is a good listener, a quick study and has the ability to bring people together to

execute strategic plans. He is an excellent orator who is able to persuade others to consider various options to

business and industry issues. In the words of Washington Irving: "Great minds have purpose, others have wishes",

can assure you that Will has purpose!"

. David Hampson, CEO, Willis Towers Watson
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1 have t)Mn a manager for owr yeare In the social service field

Hlghly^rnoti voted, .self sta'rter.rand, exce0ti6nal,mull-teski^^^^
!ex^erience.'Accustomed to wo'rkrng-:iri;a;te to think quickly;
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cdlsadvVht'^ed'.^uite.MncliKling .homjelessnyarym heaftf^lssues and speclal nee'ds'populatlpns.-
Very'creajlyeai^^^at^eqtjtcjislsipxeyenri^^ and,time
;XP9.Qa9§0.eh|.sy.[s;

lAuthpriied to .vv.crrk;in, thVUS efrployer'

Work Ex^

IResidenJt^^^
iAvesta Housing -^Sputh P.ortlahd,:ME,
^Man:h"2021 to Present,'

^Program Director^
Jyinfen-DorchesterrMA"
iMa'rch

5 - to r-5 .residents
11 :qyer seethe buclgets,?trainlny.fof :6;full:tlrne\^staff:and;5^erdieifflstaff;'!'^elSP meiSin^S"Hel^
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)Ja;nupi7i2.017;t^^^^^

fl bvereeeTl0;staff;f6r^f,l6l.bed .'mens .cor6ccui^ng'Hb1HelM5mltra1nlngrbudg^^^
rdata*ehtry>/helpwlthVc«e

Tirtagefs]^^^^
iPlnelS.tfeet Inn'
i20l 5'tplJja huai^;2p 17
^•^Vonltbr^ahd traciCdat^.quali^ ihp^ other,staff'
it Si^e'aslsr-ilalsoK-wlth -refer^ educ'ate otherservice providers •resuitingTn decr^selhi
llnappropriate referrals
'•;Lead"an_d oyGre^ nviage'and jntake;programming,flnc|udingtstaffi ppafchlhg.'ah'dj
tdp'cumentatjo^^
^TDleyeipp'8hd'pfoyldelTewli^lwmei,c'«^^
i'seivlces/li^iudlh^^case,'m^
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Stephanie Bacon

EDUCATION

New England College, Hcnnikcr, New Hampshire
Bachelor of Arts, Business Administration

Associates in Applied Science, Accounting

VALUABLE SKILLS

Intuit products with a focus on QB Pro & Premier
Solid MS Excel (intermediate/advanced training now) &: Word experience

Adapts easily to otherindustt)' specific software

WORK HISTORY

2/23 Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH

to present Finance Director/Human Resources
• Responsible for weekly payroll, depositing/reconciling 941 taxes and quarterly reports, VV2 & .1099

prep, A/P for CR-H vendors and landlords thru rental assistance program, monthly state billing/job
costing & reporting, insurance renewal/tracking, annual audit, develops policies and procedures for
finance department, works with shelter manager to hire and place employees in available positions,
onboards and exits employees as necessar)', reconciles bank accounts &: credit cards, monitors
company provided Simple IRA for employees, attends Finance Committee meetings to present
monthly overNnew of P&L, BS and Cash Flow, works under FC direction to track and place
investment accounts and endowments

12/20 to Self-employed as small business bookkeeper working from home during covid.
12/22 Full-time caregiver to family member with Lewy Body Dementia

1/19 to' MSJ, Dover, NH.
12/20 Full Charge Bookkeeper/Office Administrator

Accounting to include daily tracking & reconciliation of 12 checking accounts,
cash/credit card deposits from 7 locations and two online revenue streams,
monthly sales tax reports/payments for MB and MA, Bi-weekly payroll for 25/30 employees using
3"^ part)' payroll co., 1099 payments to contractors, tracked and filed all licenses needed, setup and
maintained sales commission reports, Bookkeeping Office relocated to Newbur)'port, MA to be
closer to owner's residence during CO\TD, unable to commute to M/X during the pandemic

11/06 to HCA, Kennebunk, ME
1/19 Bookkeeper/Office Administrator

Full Charge Bookkeeper for a small 501c (3) Art school, including tracking Sc invoicing
students/donor contributions. Accounts Payable & Receivable, bank account reconciliation, cash
flow management, sales tax payments and reports for ME & ̂'IA, 941 6c 940 deposits and reports,
prepared QB files and Statement of Functional Expenses for accountant to complete Form 990,
assisted with enrollment, certifying documents and fund-raising, managed on-site retail art supply
store including ordering/tracking inventor)' & cash flow, founder of school has retired, classes &
workshops have been relocated to Colorado
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G4/03to FNNE,Tnc,York,ME

11/06 .Bookkeeper/Office Administrator
Daily deposits, bank account reconciliation, A/P & A/R, cash flow analysis for 6 locations,
set up and maintained QB class tracking for ail locadons, invoicing & sales tax, assisted owner in
preparing business for sale, owner successfully sold business leading to position at HCA

09/00 to McHenr)-- Architecture, Terra Firma Landscape Architecture, Sumner Davis Architects
04/03 Bookkeeper/Office Adihinistrator — Independent Contractor

Bookkeeping and Administrative support for all three businesses
payroll & tax deposits, 941 & 940 reports, AJE's, account reconciliation, tracked architectural
contracts and reimbursable expenses, monitored lines of credit and loans, administrative work as

• needed, all three businesses grew big enough to require individual full-time support, left on excellent
terms to pursue work at FNNE
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Intake Specialist
Pine.Street Inn.

2014 to 2015

that are^new to the Shelter or.who'arG coming back ancJ enroll lnto.^0
• piversio.n\Trlage of Guess .who'.have other piace to go Bus tickete or referrals
• Work, with some of the Health carejprovlders about dischai^^s
• Help guest with substance.abuse.'issues.to-Treatment.prbqrarhs
vHelp tpanage the milieu

Human Services Counselor
Oxford street Shelter

2011 to 2014

Empower.hprneless clients to. locate; apply for. and secure
I Safe, affordable housing'

;r 'Assist In applying for appropriate low-income housing programs
■ C?n?,P'.6ted Intake and assessments with clients hew to the,shelter
• Outreach .services to clients newly housed to ensure a smooth.transition
• Referrals to needed mainstream resources
? Collaborate with'other Gltyand priyate agencies td.ensiire holistic care for clients
•Mlheu mana^ernent in the largest shelter north of Boston- Crisis Inten/ention :and de-escalatioh'of client In an ever<hanging
. And diverse .population ' - '

Per Diem SKelter Attendant
.Oxford street shelter - Portland. ME

May 2010 tqjuiy 2011

; Conipleted ahd:evaluated clients-needs during intake process.:
;Miljeu management, of more than ,200 clients per night

•^utilized .de-escalation techniques to assist clients in seif:regulation

Shelter Manager
Mlle'stdne-■ Pprtland, m'e
,August,26p5 to'September:2010'
• Program man'ager fbra.Al bed shelter for men and women with co-occurring Disorders
-• Supported .clients with daily living skills
' EfTiRloyed motivational fnte'rviewlhg skills to support clients with substance abuse"issue
• Cllentjeferralsrtomaihsljeam resources '
' Trained shelterand supp.ort'_^^^ In cr^ls intervention
' l^q^PR'tslble for staffing, trairiin'g 'and hlring for the entire shelter
• instrumental in. start-up of the mobile street outreach.program in Portland
Professional Achievements:
• Completed CoTOccurring.disprder training
•.NonylplerifXrisis Intefventlori-lhstrVctor.
• Trained in De^scalatldh by Spririg Harbor Hospital
•.Certificate for Mahagem'ent "SklHs for-fir Supervisors

Certificate for Trauma Sensitive Treatnient in Detox,arid Shelter $ettlngs
•.Certificate in Motlyational.lnterylewlng

•••'Certified in,First/Aid andXPR
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• Experience in ETO

Education

Bachelor's in Human Services

University of Maine at Augusta ■ Bangor-Augusta,.ME
January 2004 to.August 2009

Skills

• Program Management

• Mapcertified

• Windows 10 (3 years)

• Trauma informed.care (B^years)

• Safety care instructor {7'years),

• Excel.{4 years)

• Microsoft office {6 years)-

• Experience'with ETO (4 years)

• Experience with ACCS,<Less thah 1 year)

• Apple

• Case Management (5 years)

• Motivational lntervlew}ng. (9:years)

• Crisis Intervention (lO+'years)

• Case Management

• Motivatlpnal iriten/lewing

•Trlage,(lb+years)

• Conflict Managenient

.• Leadership

• Supen/lsirig experience

Maintenance

rGertifications .and Licenses

Driver's Ljcense

CPR

Augu'rt 2020 to A'ugust2022

Adult,and child CPR.and .AED and FrrsC Ald
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Cross Roads House

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Wildolfo Arvelo - 40 hours Executive Director .  $2,677.20 $139,205.00

Stephanie Bacon - 60 hours Finance Director $2,250.00 $78,000.00

Melissa Leeman - 84 hours Shelter Director $2,826.60 $70,000.00
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t«i1 A. We«ver ♦
IntcHni ConnbsioMr.

Ktrj* & Fox
Director'

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE .

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiyiSION FORM^A VrORAL HEALTH

'  iw PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH'WJOI.
60>-271-^4 l-800-8S2-3345Ext.9544'

Ftir603.27M332 TOD Acc«»: l-MO-735-2964 www.dhb^nhVgov

June 12.:2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Couridl

StateHouse

Goncqrt.'New Hampshire033p1

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departrnent of Health.and Hiirnan Services, piyision fof Behavioral Bealth/
■to entw Into a Sole Sourco.contract vwth,Cross.Roads House/iric.:"(VC#.166570) Pprtsrifiouth, NH
In the amount of $11647,712 for the provision of a Housing seivjces cc^nuuih of care project,
with/the option to^ renevy for up to four (4) additional .years, effective August 1, 2p23r upon
Govempr ahd'Coundl ai^rdval] through July 31,2027.100% Federal Funds.

'  Funds are anticipated to be available in state Fiscal Ypars 2024 through 2028, Viiwh the
avaiiabiiity and cont[riued appropHation of funds In the hiture operating budget, with the .authdrity
:to adjust biddget line Hems within the price limilalion and encumbYanpes bej^eh^sl^efiscaiyea^^
■through'the.'Budget Office, if needl^ and justified..-

OS-95-42423010-79270000 HEALTH AND. SOCIAL^SERVICES, DEPT^ OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS/HHSrHMMANSER\hCES,'HOMELESS > HpUSIN'G/HOUSING-SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal
Year

Class f Account ClaasTftie Job Number t
- Total
Amount

^2024 074-500585 ■ ' Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD. „ _ $377,601.

2025 ■  074r500585 |
.  • « S • '

"Grants for" PubiAsst and-Relief TBD $41i;928_
2026 074r500565; . ! Grants for Pub Asst and Relief ,$411;928'

2027 074^00565, Grants'for Pub Asst and Relief ' TBD' .$411,928'

2028 ■074-500585' - J'GraritsTo'r Pub Asst and Relief TBD
• Total $1,647,742

EXPLANATION

This .request is Sole Source because federal regulations require .all prpcureownt effo/ts,
'tp^^directed by the U.S. Department pif Houslhg and Urban Develppment (HUD) which requires,
the Department to specify name dunrig the annual/federal^ Conliriuum of Gare (CoC)
;com^titive;apFi»^^^^^^ up to a year prior'to thejgrant.a^^ being' issued^rAs Yhe,
Collaborative Applicant,"the Department is required toiissue a'Request for Proposals, .throughthe,
Cdntlriuum. ^based on :the/HUD' CpC Program Notice of Funding Opportunity.JNOFO).' HUDj
reviews and pcores vendor applications based on federal rank and reyfevy policy;.and scoring,
topls,^,created to match the federal' NOFO.. HUD sutwequentiy awards funding based on strict,
federol criteria specifyir^ pppuIations'Yo bb' ^rved pertofmahce.
putcdmeSi -and -time frames for Yhei application bomp«tltionYarid'"8ub8^ Dppartrhprital
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His Excellency. Governor Chnstopher T. Suhunu
end the HpnoraUe Coundl

Page 2 of 2 ' ' v:;

agreements,. The'Department receives notification of the awards and signed grant a'greemerits
from HUD several months later; at which time agreernents, such as the.one contained In this

' ̂ request, can be executed.

A total of approximately 28 participants will be served, at any given time annually, through
the Permanent Supportive Housing project.

Using the federally^required Housing First model, the Contractor will provide a housing*
services continuum of care project that includes the following categories:.

.• Permanent SuDOorth/e HousinQ fPSH) services that deliver long-term, tenant-bas^ rental
assistance for participants with a disability, as defined by.The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD). PSH includes supportive services designed to meet the individual
needs of program participants without being a prerequisite for rental or leasing assistance.

Additionally, the Contractor will work to'maximize each participant's ability to live more
'independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing annual reports provided by the
(Contractor and conducting annual reviews, related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Pfovisions. of the attached
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreerpenl for up four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. . - ?

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and fami|les
experiencing homelessriess in' unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance vflth federal r^ulations. which could result In a loss of
[federal funding for these and other types of perrnanent housing and supportive service programs.

.Area served: Statev/ide.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #14.267, ,FAIN #...
NH0095L1T002207. '

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be, requested to support this program. « , . .

.  Respectfully submitted, *'

.  •!>

*' Lori A. Weaver >
Interim Commissioner i:

Vtt Oepartnieiilo/fftall^ pnd Hunion Servi^'Miuion it to join eonimunilitt ond/omilin
■ill providing opporlitnUies for citiunt to ochieit htollh ondtndependenct.

li
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, Subject: Continuum of Care CRH.(SS-2024-DBH.07-CONTI-0l)

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agrecmcnl and all dfjis allachmenls shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval! Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

•The State ofNcw Hampshire and the Contractor hcreby mutually agree, as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS.

1.1 State Agency Name"

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

v:

1.2 State Agency Address '

129 Pleasant Street " .-c
Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Cross Roads House, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

600 Lafayette Road
Portsmouth, NH 03801

1.5 Cpnlracior Phone
Number

((503) 436-2218

1.6 Account Number .

■ 05-95^2-423010-
'79270000

1.7 Completion Dale

7/31/2027

1.8 Price Limitation

51,647,712

1.9 Contracting Officer for State. Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

i(603y27l-963l
V  t

i;11; Contractor Signature

M dmlti .P/l=4y2023 ,

1.12 | Namc and Title of Contractor Signatory
Will Arvelo

Executive Director

1.

1

r3~*^SRft^Agifncy Signature
^—OocuSlghidbr.

■  P/i'5i/2023

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja s. FOX

Director •;

I."15 AppfoTOTty the.N.H. Dcpartmcnl of Adminisiraiion, Division .of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By; Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Fpnn, Subsiancc.and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By: I .On: 6/16/2023
I.j"^ . Approval by tl»c Governor and Exccuih'c Council (if applicable) -V,

wG&C Item number: • C&C Meeting Date:
*. V ;1.

aV 't

Page 1 of4
Coritracior initials

OJil

Date6/14/2023
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED, the Stale of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.I
("State"), engages contractor' identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
E-xecutive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, ifapplicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics hcrcuridcr,- shall
become effective on, the date the Governor and E.xccijiivc
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effectis'e Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the EfTeciivc Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement doc.s not become
effective, the State shall have no lij^iliiy to the Contractor,
including - without limliaiion, any obligation to pay the
'Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONbmONAL NATIJR£ OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement' to the
contrary, all oblijgations of the State hcreunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcreunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds alTccled by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agrccmchl and
the Scope for Services p'rovidcd in EXHIBIT,B, in whole or in
part, In no cvcm shall the State be liable for any payments
hcreunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds,- the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
' Income available, if ever, and shall.have the righl to reduce or

terminate the Services under this.Agrccmcnt immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or'tcrmination.
The State shall not bc/cquircd to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event .funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.,

5. CONTRACT'PR.I'CETpRICE LIMltATiONV
PAYMENT:

5.1 The contract price, met hod of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and.more particularly described In EXHIBIT C
which Is iricbrj^rated herein by reference.
5.2 The paymeril by'thc State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor.for all
expenses, of whatcvcr'naturc incurred by the Contractor in the
'performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the ri^t to offset from any amounts
.otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7.
through RSA 80:7-c or.any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no'
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made-
hcreunder, c.KCccd the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY .CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

'6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Coniracior shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal

'authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Coniracior. including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any'pari by monies of the United States, the Contractor •

■jshall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
;and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
iSiatc or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
IThc Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intclleciijal
'property laws.
|6.2 During the term of this Agreement, tlie Contractor shall not
idiscriminate against employees or applicants for employment
[because of race, color, rcligioii, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
iqrieniation, or national origin and will lake affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

:6.3. The Coniracior agrees to permit the State or United States,
laccess to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
'>(he purpose of a'sccrtaining compliance with all rules, regulations
.'arid orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
lAgrccmcnl,'-

,7. PERSONNEL.
,i7.1 Thc'Coniractor shall at its own expense provide all'pcrsonnel
. necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
'all personnel ^engaged in the Services shajl. be qualified to
''perform 'the Services, arid shall be properly licensed and
Otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws. ,
[7.2- Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this. Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the

• 'completion Date in block 1.7, thc'Contractor shall not hire, and
'shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, fi rm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in.a combined cfTort to
'perform thc ScrVices to hire, any person who is a Stale employee
or .official, 'who is materially involved in the 'procurement,
administration, ,or performance of this Agreement.' This

.provision,shall survive termination of this Agreement.
i7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in'block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In'the event of any
ciispuie concerning the interpretation of.,this Agreement, the
fcontracting OITiccr-s decision shall be fi nal for the State.

Page 2 of4
Contractor Initials

m
Date6/14/2023



OocuSIgn Envelope ID: F4A20AFF-6BA^A7A-941C-2S62148DdA55

8. EVENT OF DEFAULTmEMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihe following ads or omissions of {he
Conirador shall constitute an event pf default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perfonm the Service satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure.to submit any repon required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Es'ent of Default, the Siaie may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied wjthin", in the absence of'
a greater or lesser specificationjjf time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if ihe Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2),days afler giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
812.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Djefauli and set off against any other obligations the State.may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers.by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or «
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the .
Agreement' and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Slate fo enforce any provisions hereof after
affy Event of Default shaft be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to" that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Dcfaull.\No express failure tp enforce any Event pf-Defaiilt shall

. be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

?.fERMIiNATION.
9.1 .Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slate may, at its sole
discretion,'terminate the Agreement for any reason- in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
'9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason oiher than 'the coinplelion of the Services, the
•ConVractor shall, at the Stale's .discVetidn, deliver to the
iCoritr'aciing Officer, not later thaii fi fteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a repo'n ("Termination Report") [describing in
detail all Services performed, arid the contract price earned, to
rand including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
'bc'idcnlical to those ofany final Report described in the' attached
lEXHlBlT B. In addition.^at Ihe State's discretion, the Contractor

'Shall, .within 15 days of notice of.carly termination, develop, and

Page

submit to the' State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/COiNFlDENTIALITY/ -

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "daia" shall mean all
■infoiination and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
fi les, formulae, surveys, maps, charts,[sound recordings, video'
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes;
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all.whether
fi nished or unfinished. .
10.2 All data and any property whjch has been received from ■
the State or purcha.ced with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination

.ofthis Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govemed by'N.H. RSA' .
chapter 91 •A or other existing law.. Disclosure of data requires

' prior wTitlen approval of the State.
I  -

111. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
Iperformance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
Ian independent contractor, 'and is neither an agent nor an
[employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
jOfTicers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
joiher emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

.12. ASSiCNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
,12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any-
lintcrcst in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
'shall be provided to the Stale at least fi fteen (15) days prior to

•  ithe'assignment, and a writien'conseni of the Slate. For purposes
|0f. Ihis paragraph, a Change ,of Contrpi, shall constitute

'' assignment. "Change of Cbntrbl"' means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
jwhich a third party, together with its affiliates,- becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fi fty percent (50%) or more of the
jvoting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting

■■ power of thejContractor, or (b) the[salc.of all or substahiially all
jaf the assets of the Contractor,
|12.2 None of the Scmces shall be subcontracted by the
Contractpr^wiilioul prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcoritracis and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a Subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party. , •

I
13. INDEMNIFICATION. Urilcss'othcfwisc c.xcmpted by law,
the Conlracior, shall indemnify and hold, harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injur>' or properly damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the.Staie, its officers or employees, which arise out or(or which
rnay be claimed to arise out oQ the acts:,or omissibajof the

■3of4
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
.negligence, reckless or inlentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred .by the Contractor arising under-
•this paragraph n.NoiNvithstandingihc foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall.be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity js hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in. paragraph IT shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its. sole expense, obtain and
conlinuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial genera) liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in Bmouni.s of not
less than $ i ,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or.e.xcess; and.
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
/14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Deportment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish ib^thc Contracting Officer
identified in block I !9, or his or her successor, a ccrtificate(s) of
insurance for all .insurance required .under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, pr his or her successor,xenificate(s).of insurance
for all rcncwBi(s) of insurance reqijired under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date'of each
insurance policy. ' The ccrtificatc(s) of Insurance and any
renewals thercofshaII,be,attached artd arc incorporated herein by
reference, i

15, WORKERS' COMPENSATION. -
15.r By signing this agreemcni, the Contractor agrees. certifics
and warrants that' the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N^H. RSA chapter 281-A ( 'lyqrkcrs,'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the exierii the Contractor is subject to the requirements^
of N.H. RSA chapter 281.-A, Coniraciof_shall maintain, and
require any subcontractpr or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in ' connection with
Activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to. this
Agreement. TheContractorshall fumishiheContractipgOfTiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner dc.scribcd'ih N.H, RSA chapter
281-A and any "applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
Bttached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be jTcspohsibjc .for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or .employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New-Hampshire
Workers' Compensation .laws in connection with the
performance of lhc Services'undcr'this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly,delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage.prepaid, in a United States

- Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses giyen in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreemenl may be amended, waived
or. discharged only by an instrument in writirig signed by'^lhe
parties hereto and only afier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive'Council of
the Statc^'of New Hampshire uritc^s no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AjND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and„consirued in accordance with the-
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the beAefii of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
•of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any"party.
•Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
;maintained in New Hampshire Superior Coun which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

.19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or atiachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

,:20. THIRD PARTIES. The pMics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and, this 'Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

J21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the, words contained therein
shall in no vs'ay be held to explain, modify, amplify of aid in the
inlcrpreiaiiprt, coristruction or meaning of the provisiorirbf this
'Agreement'

22. SPECIAL .PROVISIONS. Additional for' modifying
. provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A'arc incorporated
herein by reference.

i  •• . ..
23. SEVEE2ABILITV. Inihc.cvcni any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement, are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining proyisions_pf
this Agreement will remain inTulJ force and cffcci.

:24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts,'each of which shall be -
•.deemed an original, consiiluies the entire agreement and.
undersianciing between the parties, and supersedes all .prior
agreements and understandings with" r«pect io the subject matter.

'Iiereof.
I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CRH v

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P:37. General Provisions '

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

'.-r?

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended
as follows: - -

3.1, Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrarY, and subject to
the approval of the, Governor and Executive Council of the State of New
Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereuhder, shall become effective on August 1, 2023 ("Effective Date").

Paragraph '3.. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph-3.3. as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years 'from
the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactorydelivery of services, available
:funding, agreement of the parties) and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council. j ■

Paragraph 12., Assignmenl/Delegatjon/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3. as follows: .-i t,

i 2.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the Contractor
and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcoritractor compliance with
those conditions. The Contractor shall have written agreements with all
subcontractors, specifying the \wrk to be performed, and if applicable, a
.Business Associate Agreement iin accordance with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act. Written agreements shall "Specify how
corrective action, shall be managed. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on ah ongoing basis and take corrective action as
'necessary. The Contractor shall 'annually provide the State with a- list of all
subcontractors provided for undeij this Agreement and notify the ̂ Stataof ariy
•inadequate subcontractor "performance.

SS-2024-D8H-07.CONT!4)1

Crossroads House, lr>c:
;V'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CRM

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work
V  *'

1.1. Continuum of Care - ^

1.1.1,. Permanent Supportive H,ousing (PSH)

1.1..1.1. The Contractor must provide PSH, which is long-term assistance
for participants with a disability as defined by The'U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The .Contractor-must
provide assistance to prograrn participants until the participant(s)
chooses to exit the project or is terminated from the project as
determined by HUD regulations, 24 CFR 578." ••

1.1.1.2.

1.'1.1.3.

=^1.1.1.4.

T.1.1.5.

•1.1.ife.

1:1.1.7.

1.1.1.8.

S$-2024.0BH-07-CONTI-01

'Cross Roads House. Inc.

The Contractor must, provide a Peirnanent Supportive Housing
Expansion program based in Rpckingham and Merrimack
Counties, in this agreement, that is targeted to,serve'28 adults
statewide, with scattered-site, long-term, tenant-based rental
assistance and supportive services.

The Contractor must

permitted for greater
provide tenant-based rental assistance that is
than 24 months, does not have a designated

end date, and must be .administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Coritinuum, as set'forth in 24
CFR 578.7(a)(9). Tenant based rental assistance is rental
assistance in which'program .participants choose housing of an
appropriate size'in which to reside.

The Contractor miist 'provide supportive services designed to ineet
the needs of the program partici(3anis.

The Contractor must ensure that program participarits are not
required to participate in supportive services as a condition of their
housing.

The Contractor must ensure PSH projects provide supportive
services for participants that will ensure successful retention in of
help in obtaining permanent housing, including all supportive,
services, regardless of funding.

The Contractor must-assigri a case manager to .each participant
upon program entry. ̂ y.

The Contractor must "develop a housing stability plan with prograrh
participants that, outlines the steps to be taken, including but not
limite'd to:

1.1.1.8.1. Increasing both.ea.med and non-earried income;,

1.1.1.8.2. Ensuring that program participants receive individual
assistarice in obtaining the benefits of mainstream
health, social, and employment programs '/or which
they are eligible to apply and that meet th^fieeds;
and

b-2:q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CRN

EXHIBIT B

1.1.T.8.3. Maintaining-permanent housing or facilitating exits to
... positive permanent housing destinations.

1.1.1.9. The ContrajDtor must conduct an annual assessment of service
needs of the program participants and adjust .the services
accordingly.- li

1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.2.1. The Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth In the.
approved HUD Project Application #SF-424. -•

'1.2.2. The Contractor must ensure that participants meet at least one, or more, of
.t -■ the qualifications of homelessness, as defined by HUD in 24 CFR '578.3.

1.2.3. The Contractor must participate-in the regional and CoC CE System.
■  1.2;4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business

- days, excluding state and federal holidays.

The Contractor must participate in meetings yvith the Department as requested
by the Departnient. •
The Contractor must ensure staff participate in training as required by the
Department.

The Contractor must ensure the

1.2:7.1.

1.2.5.

1.2.6.

1.2.7. program includes, but is not limited to:
Utilization of the Housing First mode! that ensures:

1.2.7.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
those required by federal regulations or state la\A/s:_'■ and j

1.2.7.1.2. Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after'available options to maintain housing
are exhausted, as "detailed in HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91:<  j .

1.2'7.2. ;Developrnent of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive Services
deliver assistance in
live in the community

1.2.8.

that Is provided to participants in order to
obtaining necessary skills and resources to
independently.

The "Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive" services and
community resources, to meet jbasic needs including, but. not limited to:
housing, safety, food, mental health and medical care. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.2.8.1

1.18.2.

Participants increase" safety through planning and trauma-informedresource provision; j "
Facilitation of the transition of. individuals, youth, and families
experiencing homelessness to permanent, housirig arid maximized
self-sufficiency; . r, ;o

.SS-2024-08H-07-CONTI-01

Cross Roads Housa, li^.-

-  B-2.0
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EXHIBIT B

1.2.8.3. Participants are empowered by Contractor's program to increase
safety and regain.,controi and independence;

1.2!6.4. ̂ Participants are offered connections to assistance^ in applyirig for
Compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
adyocacy and referrals to free legal services; and

1.2.8.5. Households with children will be connected to education resources,

school staff, and childcare services, based on need. -

1.2.9. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service, needs of the
program participants and adjust the services accordingly.

1.2;10. The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for substance

. misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer support, or any other need for-
referral assistance identified by the participant:

1.2.1.1. The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent housing, as well as participants' connections with
community and mainstream services, to increase independence and
household income to sustain permanent housing.

4

t.2".1,2. The, Contractor must actively participate in reviews conducted • by the
Department, onsite or rernotely, as determined by the Department or HUD, on
an annual basis, or as othenMse requested by the Department, that must"

.  include, but are not limited to, participaiit files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations. The
Contractor must:-" '■

I

1,2.12.1; Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files;

1.2.12.2.- Ensure financial datajis available, as requested.by the Department
and/ pr HUD'; and

1.2.12.3. Provide other informatibn that assists in determining .contract
compliance, as requested by the Department and/ or HUD.,

T.2,13. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b}, HtJD, the HUD Office of the Inspector Gerieral, 'and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized'
representatives, must have the^ right of access to all books, documents,,
papers, or other records of the ContractorThat are pertinent to the (CoC) grant,

r  in order to make, audits, examinations^ excerpts, and transcripts. These rights
of .access are not limited to the required, retention period, but last as long as
the records are retained.

1.2.14. The Contractor must adhere to federal and stale financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD poC program application; program
narratives, budget detail and riaffative,.and amendments thereto, as detailed
In the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) poC Project
•Application approved by.HUD.

1.2.15. The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from fepresentatives of state or federar]aglncies

SS-2024-DBH-07-c6NTi-0l ■ ' B-2.0 Contractor Initials .£
^  . 6/14/2023
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EXHIBIT B

who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct.an inspection of records and documents.,

1.2.16. The Contractor must provide services^ according to the HUD regulations
■outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part-578, the CoC Program, HUD
."Project Application #SF-424 and other written ' appropriate .HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD .waivers are granted.

1.2.17. The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families meet
the 'requirement definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of
homelessness qualifications, as defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible fof
contractservices. as applicable to the project.

1.2.18. PerThe McKinney-Ventp Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency ; Assistance and jRapid Transition to

sr Housing (HEARTH) _ Act 'Of 2009,
httDs://www.hud.QOv/sites/documents/HAAA HEARTH.PDF:

I
1.2.18.T. The Contractor'must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless

••'■ Management Jnforrnation System (NH HMIS) as the primary
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract:

1.2.18.2. The Contractor must
client level data into t

ensure all programs are licensed ̂ to provide
the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,

per 24 CFR 578, and' as detailed in the following publication from
... The National, Network to End Domestic Violence (NNEDV):

.http://Qihrn.orQ/wordDress1/wp-
cont0nt/uDloads/2O18'/O8/Comparable-Database-for-DV--
NNEDV.pdf. I

»• • . * ■ . '

1,2.18.3. The Contractor "mustj follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information required for,data entry, accuracy of data entered, and

■ time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Infonmation
'Security requirementsj and Exhibit I for Privacy requirements. '•

V  1 !2.19. The Contractor must comply with' all record-keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD.under 24 CFR 578.103, ' ^

1:2.20. The Cpntracto? rhust establish and rriaintain standard operating procedures to
j  ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 2*4 CFR 578, 2 CFR.

Part 500, and must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD
.and the Departrfienl >to detehnine Contractor compliance, including, but not_
limited to: . ■ \ .

.  'T
.. . 1:2.20.1. Continuum of Care Records.- The Contractor must maintain the

-  " .V Tollowing .docurrientation related to :establishirig and operating a
V  ̂ '^CoC:- '

}];

''' 1.2.20.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor must
maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in

"■ accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b);

,SS-2024-OBH::d7-CONTI^1 B-'a.O • Contractof IniUals V
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EXHIBIT B

SS-2O24-O0H-P?^ONTH31

Cross Rob<U House.lnd.

1.2.20.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The
- Contractor must maintain records that establish "at

risk of homelessness" status of each individual or

•farrilly who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.2.20.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat'of
Harm. The Contractor must maintain documentation

of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due'to Imminent threat of further domestic

vioience. dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as defined in 24^ CFR 578.51(cX3). The Contractor
must retain documentation that includes, but is not
iimited'tb:

1.2.20.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or .stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented in
the program participant's case file^
This may be written observation of the
housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation from a victim

service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victirf} has sought assistarice; medical
or dental records; court records or [aw

enforcement records; or written

certification by the program participant
to whom the violence- occurred, or by
the.head of household: and

1.2.20.1 3.2; The reasonable belief of imminent

'■ threat of further domestic violence,
, dating violence, or sexual assault or

stalking, which would include threats
from a third-party, such as a friend or

•i family member of the perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written

i  observation by the housing p.r service
provider; a letter or' other
documentation from a victirn service
provider, social • worker, legal

■ assistance • provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or

■  other professional from whorrT^,:.the
victim has sought, assistance^^ujfent

B-2.6j Contractor Initials
PagoSpfiu bate 6/14/2023.
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EXHIBIT B

restraining order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement

report ,or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends

"  of the perpetrator of, the violence,
including emails, voicemails. text
messages, and social media posts; or
a, written certification by the program
participant to whom the , violence
occurred or the.head of household.

1.2.20.2. Records of Annual Income. For .each program participant who
- receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is

'  paid by the progrartij,participant, the Contractor must keep the
following documentation of annual Income: y

1.2.20.2.1.

■1.2.20:2.2.

Income evaluatlor) form specified by HUD . and.
completed by the Contractor;

Source c
to:

ocuments, which Include but are not limited

1.2.20.2.3.

1.2.20.2.'2.1. Most recent wage staterheht;
1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation

'  1 statement:

1.2.20.2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank
I  statements for the assets held by the

program participant; and
1.2.20.2.2.4. Income received before the date of the.

I  evaluation.
To the I extent that source documents are.
unobtairiable, a written statement by a relevarit third
party, which may include an employer ;or a.
government benefits administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral"
venficatidn by the relevant third party of the income
the prograrn participant received over the most recent
period; or

1.220.2.4.
' ' '

To the extent that source documents and third-party
•v.;- verification are unobtainable, the writtemcertification

by the program participant of the amount 'of income
that the program participant is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period /gilpvying
the evaluation.

1-2.202;. Proaraffi Participant !Records. Tn addition to evidence of

SS-202'M)BH-07-CONTl-0,1

Cross Roads Housa, Ir^c.

homelessness status
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applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

'  1.2.20.3.1. The services and assistance provided to that
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of

.  services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the

'  . service package accordingly, and including case
'• management services as provided in 24 CFR

"  578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F);and

1.2.20.3.2. Where'applicable, compliance with the termination of
■  assistance jeqiiirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

1.2.20.4. Housino Standards.JThe Contractor must retain documentation of
compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR ,576.75(b),
•including inspection i;eports.

N; . 1.2.20.5. Services Provided. .The Contractor must document the tvoes of

supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent oVi those services. The Contractor must keep

-  documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessatjy.

1.2.21. The Contracto.r must maintain records that document compliance with:

1.2.21.1. The oroanizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR

-  ' 578.95(c): j
1.2.21.2. The CoC board conflict-of-interest reouirements in 24 CFR

•578.95(b); and

1.2.21.3. The other conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95fd).
•  I • '

■  1.2.22. The Contractor must develop, implernent and retain a copy,of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements In 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting ̂ hy exceptions to" the personal conflict-

, of-interest prohibitions'.

1.2;23. The Contractor must comply arid
1-1

1.2.23.1. The homeless partici
■  ̂ CF.R 578.75(g):

1.2.23.2. The faith-based activi

■  '578.87(b):

1 ;2.23.3. Requirements pf'24 CFR 578.93(c) for affirmatively furthering fair
housing by maintaining copies of ail marketing, outreach, and other
materials used, to inform eligible persons of the program;

1.2.23.4. Other federal requirerfienls in.24 CFR,578.99, as applicable;

■  :
SS-2024-OBH-07^0NTI-01 /;•■ B-2.0 v. ContfacTof Initials v
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1.2.23.5. 'Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and

1.2.23.6.. Procurement requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24.CFR part 84-

'1.2.24. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and. security
•  requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and

implement written procedures to ensure:

•1.2.24.1. All .records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are
kept secure and confidential;

1.2.24.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
.CoC furids, are not made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project; arid ,

,  I ' . -
1.2.24.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant is
' not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy

"  policy of the recipient .or sub recipient and consistent with state and
■  local laws regarding privacy and obligations ofoonfidenliality.

2.-Contract Administration

,2.1. The Contractor must have appropriate leyels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the Department's Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS), including training
in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws. Tp.the extent
possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

2.2. 'The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within thirty (30)
days of the change. ■ ! "

•' . u . .. *3. Reporting Requirements j "
1.3.1. The Contractor must submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to ^he

Department within thirty (30) days after-the Contract Completion Dale on' the form
'required, or specified, by the Department.

•3.2. The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services

129 Pleasant Street

"  'Concprd. NH 03301 -

'  .3.3. The Contractor must ensure (he APR hcludesia summary of aggregate (results of
the project activities; consistent with the fprrii.at proposed in .the Contractor's
application submittedrto HUD Tor the relevant fiscal year COC f^Jotice of Funding
Opportunity (NpFp). j v

3.4. The Contractor must .submit other reports as requested by the Department in
;.4 ^compliance \vith NH HMlSpoiicy and/or Department policies and procedures.

SS-2024-DB>W7^pNTI^1
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3.'5. r The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with.the Department, in a
format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data arid metrics,
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The-Contractor.must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiatile Health Information (Privacy
Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164)-under the Health Insurance Portability and
'Accountability Act,(HlPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the.attached Exhibjl I,

■  Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor must manage all .corifideritial data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K', DHHS Information Security Requirements.

4.3. The Coritractor rfiust comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached hereto
•  and incorporated by reference herein, i.

5. Additional Terms f ,
5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have ari impact on the Services described'herein, the
state has the right to 'niodify Service priorities and expenditure
.requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

5.2. Tederal Civil Rights Laws Conipliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Servicesi(CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor must submjt, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and,
language assistance seryices to be provided to ensure meaningful access

•, - to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency:
jndii/iduals who^are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who arej)lind or
'have low .vision;.and individuals who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ovvnership - j
'5.3.1. .All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other

materials prepared during' or resulting from the performance of the
setvices of this Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report.'docurne.nt etc.) was financed under a Contract
with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
"Services, with funds provided in part t^y the State of New Hampshire
and/or suchojher'funding sources,as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of'Health and Human Services."

f5.3.2.. All materials, produced or purchased under this Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before priritrng, production,
■.distribution or use. > -•

■5.3.3. The Department must retain "copyright ownership for any and alLosiginal
^  :materials produced, including, but pot limited to: \ O^li

SS-2b24-b0H-O7:tONTi-Ol 'B-2.0 Contradof Iniliats V " •
^  6/14/2023
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5.3.3.1. Brochures: '

5.3.3.2. Resource ,|directpries:

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;

5.3.3.4. Posters; and ■

5.3.3.5. Reports

,5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any mMerials produced under this
Agreement without prior written approvaj from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In theoperation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
•E comply with all laws, orders |and regulations of federal, state, county and

municipal authorities and with any direction pf any'Public Officer or officers
pursuant to jaws which must- impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operationjof the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any governmental license or perrnit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,-

. the Contractor" will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and •.conditions of each such license or permit. In

.■conriection with, the foregoing requirements," the. Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities

,  must comply with all-rules, orders, regulations,-and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and" the local fire protection agency, and.

...must be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, bylaws and
regulations.

5.5. 'Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permilte]d to determine the eligibility of individuals,
.youth, and/ or families such eligibility verifications, must be rnade In
accordance with applicatjle federal and state laws, regulations, orders",
guidelines, policies and procedures.

'5.5.2. .Eligibility determinations must be tTiade on fprrns provided, or required by,
the Department for ,that purjpose" and must be made'" and remade, or

'  reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department.
5.5.3. Jn addition to the determina ion forms required by the Department, the

t  Contr^actor must, "maintain a .data file on .each participant of services-
hereunder, which file must include all inforrnation necessary to support an
eligibiHty determination and 'such other inforrnatiph as the Department
requests. The Contractor must furnish the'Department "with all forms.and.

'•> • documentation regarding eligibility determinations that, the Department
^  may request pr-reQuJre., j

5.5.4., The .&ntractor understands that all applicants for servi'ces^hereunder, as,
well as individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor .hereby covenants": arid
agrees" that all applicants for services must be permitted to, 3"-

SS-2024-OBH-d7^ONT»-01 B-2.0 I " ConifacUdr inttiate V "" .
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application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing In accq>dance with applicable regulations.

6. Records

6"1. The Contractor miist keep records that include, but are hot limited to:

6:1 .'i; Books, Tecords, documents and other electronic or physical -data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses, incurred, by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract,-and all income received or
cpljected by'the Contractor.

6.1.2. AH records must be maintainedin accordance with accounting procedures

and practices, wrfiich sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, :and to include,,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and. orders, vouchers, requisitions for

'' ■ materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6:1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit' records for each recipient of
services, .which records mist include all 'records of application and
eligibility "(including alljorms required to determine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all invoices
submitted to the,Department:to obtain payment for such services.

I

Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made'py microfilming, phptocoFiying, or other similar methods, pertairi'ing to
,CoC funds aTe retained for five (5) years following the Contract Cornpletion Date
and receipt of final payment by 'the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required
fo be maintained fofa period in-excess of the five (5) year period.according to stale
Or federal law'or regulation.'

During the iteim of this Agreement arid the period for retention hereundef, the
pepartment, ihe United States Department of Health and Human Services, and ariy
;bt their designated representatives must have access to alj.reports and records
maintajned purs,uant to this Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
."and transcripts. |
If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report,,the Department must disallow any
■expenses claimed by'the Contractor as costs hereunder, thO Departrrient retains the
right, at its discretion;, to deduct the amount of^such expenses as are disallowed or.
tb'recovef such sums from the Contractor.

I  . J '

6.2.

.6.3.

6.4.,

SS-2624-DBH-07CONTi:01
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Pavment Terms '•

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle ,A-
Houslng Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as. awarded on March 28, 2023, by the
US Dept of Housing and Urban Development, Continuum of Care Program,

-  Assistance Listing# 14.267, FAIN NH0095L1T002207. -

2. For the purposes of this Agreement .the Department has Identified:

2.1. . The Contractor as^.a Subreciplent, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance,with 2 CFR §200.332.

3.- The Contractor must submit an invoice with suppo.rting documentation to the Department
no later than the fifteenth-(15th) working day Of the. morith following the month in which
the services were provided. The Contractor must ensure each invoice:

' ̂ '* 1 t
3.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor "Number issued upon registering with New

Hampshire Departrnent of Administrative Services.

3.2. Is' submitted in .a form that is provided by or' otherwise acceptable to the
Department. j ■ '

3.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous month.

3.4. ' Includes supporting documerits^tion of allowable costs with each Invoice that may,
include, but'are not limited to,:ti^e sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases,

; ■ and proof of expenditures, as ;applicable.

3:5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documehtatlon for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

3.6. . Is assigned an electrpriic signature, .includes supporting documentatidh, and is-
emailed to. housinQsuDDortslnvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov or mailed to: ,

NH DHHS ■:
.Bureau of Hom.eless Services
■129 Pleasant Street
•Concord, NH 03301-

le Contractor within forty-five (45) days .of
documentation for authorized expenses,

4. The Department'shall make payments to t
receipt pf aach .invoice..and supporting
subsequent fo approval of the submitted invoice.

'5. The final" invoice and supporting documentation for authorized 'expenses shall be due to
the Departrnent no later'than forty (40) days-after'the contract completion date specified
in Form R-37, General Provisions Block 1.7, jCompletlon Date.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 17 pf .the'General Provisipns Form P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between .State
Fiscal Years and budget class lines throughlthe;Budget Office may be made by written
agreement ofboth parties, without obtaining approval of-the Governor and Executive
Council, ifpeeded and justified. j . - •

f: m.
•SS-2024-D8H-07-CONTI-01 .. C-2.0 , -ConUactor Irtliate
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7. Audits.

7.1. The Contractor must email an annual.audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.aov if any of the
following conditions exist:

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor experided $750,000, or more, in federal
'  funds received as a.sybrecipierit pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the

most recently completed fiscal year. , . •

7.1.2. Condition B - The' Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requlremenls.of NH RSA 7:28. lil-b.

'7.1..3_. Condition C - The Co.ntractor is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an
annual financial audit. |

7.1.4., Condition D - The contractor expends less than $750,000 in federal "
• funds, during the fiscal^ year, is exempt from Federal Monitoring

'(f. Requirements, except as noted in 2 CFR 200.503,.but records must be
.available for review,'or audit,'by'appropriate officials of the Federal
agency, pass through entity, and Government. Accountability Office
(GAO). Federal awards expehded'as a recipient or a subrecipient are ̂
subject to audit under this part. The payments received for goods or
services.provided as a contractor are not Federal awards. Section §
200.331 sets forth the considerations in determining whether payments
constitute a Federal award

as a contractor.

or a payment for goods or services provided

7.2. If Condition A exists, the Contracior'rnust submit.an annual Single Audit performed
by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov
within 120 days after the close ofjthe Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in"
accordance with .the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cpst Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
avvards.

7.2.1,. ■ - The'Contractor must subrpit a copy pY any Single Audit findings and any
associated corrective action plans. The. Contractor must submit
quarterly progress reports on the'Status ibf implementation of the
corrective action plan.

7:3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Coritractor must submit ah annual financial
audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the.
"Contractor's fiscal.year. ■"

7.4. 'In,addition to, and not m'any way in- imitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
'Understood and agreed by the Con'tractor.that the Contractor shall be held liable
■for any state or federal audit exceptions an'd .shall return to'the pepartmerit a|l
payments nrtade under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or Which
have been disallowed because of.such an exception.

7.5. If the Contractor is not subject to the] audit requirements'bf 2 CFR part 200, the
Dy of an audited financial/T^'rt to the-hmr

Contractor iniilate .V
"" " 6714/2023

Contractor shalj submit one (1) 'cp
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Department, utilizing the guidelines set forth by the Comptrdiler General of the
United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations. Program
Activities, and Functions," within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart
F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit"
Requirements for Federal awards 90 days after contract completion date.

8. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State ' r,-.

8.1. "Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" means all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the
Project. Activities, as detennined'by the State to be eligible and allowable for
payment, in accordance ,with Public Law 102-550. as well as ailpwable cost
standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to time and with the
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State.. All subcontractors shall
meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200. . • ... .

8.2.

.8.3.

'Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
578 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: .,
permanent housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in
some cases, homeless prevention or an identified program component under the
applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity, such as the Joint Transitional Housing,"
and Permanent Housing-Rapid Rehousing component project . Administrative
costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to the restrictions
on combining funds fof-certaih eligible activities in a single project fourid in 24 CFR
576.87(c).

Match Funds:

8.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by

8.3.2.

8.3.3.

8.3.4..

8.3.5.

SS-2024.DBH-07-CONTI-01
/

Ctoss Roads HouM; Inc.

HUD regulations and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

Match funds shall be documented with each payment request.

The.Cpntractor-shail match all,grant fur^ds except for leasing funds, with
no jess than twenty-five (25) percent oF funds or in-kind contributions
frorn ojher sources.

The Contractor may choose to utilize Cash^Match, or In-Kind Match, for
the cost of activities that are eligible undef subpart, D of 24 CFR 578.
TheContractor shall: ] .

I'-- 1
8.3.4.1. The ContradtOf| rnust substantiate the 'cash match" in a

commitrnerit letter, and then rnust be tracked through the
Contractor's firiancial statements, general ledgers, and
dther records th'at reflect yearly"financial status to" show that
:'the cash was spent on'eligible program expenses within the
grant term.

i  „ • .

The cash rhatch written cdmfhitment must be documented on the

committing agency's letterhead and must-be signed and dated by an

C-2.0
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authorized representative of the agency providing the cash match. The
documentation, at a minimum, must include the.following:

'8.3.5.1. Amount of cash to be provided for the project.

'  8.3.5.2. .Specific date the cash will be available to the project..

8.3.5.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the cash rnatch will be
contributed. .

8.3:5.4. Allowable activities to be funded by the cash rnatch.
Documentatlorj of expended match must include:

8.3.5.4.1. . Agreement for cash match.

8.3.5;4.2. Cash match tracking which is done according
to general accounting principles in • the

;>. general ledger. ^
•t ' '

8.3.5.4.3. Source documentation that' cash match is

spent' on eligit;)le activities under CoC
Program interim rule.

,  ,

8.3.6. The Contractor must maintain records of the source and use of

contributions made to satisfy the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

8.3.7. If the Contractor utilizes IniKind-Match, the Contractor must ensure the
,  following requirements are met:

8.3.7.1. The in-kind property, equipment, or -goods must be
substantiated ii;i a commitment letter and must be tracked
by'the subrecipient agency to demonstrate that these items
were delivered! to the project,-, and/ox. to its particip^nis,
during the grant term.

.. 8.3.7.2. Written commitrrients for in-kind propel^,: equipment,, or
goods must be documented on the cornmittjng agericy's
letterhead and must be signed and dated by an authorized
representative .of the agency providing the in-kind match..

. The dgcumentatipn, at a" rniriirnum, rnusT include the
following: -f;

8.3.7.2.1. Description and value of the donated

t,\-- property, equiprnent, or goods;,

8.3.7.2.2. Specific date the property,- equipment, or
goods will be made available to the project;'

8.3.7.2.3. Grant and fiscal year'to whLCh We property,,
equipment, or goods will be contnbuted; and.

8.3.7.2.4. Method used to determine the vajue pf the
property, equipment, or goods

8.3.8. InrKind Services must be substantiated in a Memorandum.. of
Understanding (lyiOU), and, then must be tracked'by .{ti^°|ecipient or

SS-2024-OBH-07<;ONT'|-01 C-2.0 ' Conlractorlnitials _
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subreclpient to show that.the services.were delivered to program
participants during the grant term. Any services or benefits committed to
a program ,participant rather than the recipient or subreclpient jhrough
an MOU'are generally ineligible to be counted as match.

•8.3.8;1. Written commitments . of in-kind services, during the
application, must be initially docurhented on the committirig
agency's letterhead. The document must- be signed and
dated, by an authorized representative of the agency
providing the in-kind services'.

8.3.8.2. An MOD must be in place between the
recipient/subrecipient and service provider by the time of

• grant execution and must include .detail of the in-kind
services, their Value, and the calculation method to be used

'  I '

in determining their value. Any services provided, prior to the
execution of the MOD cannot be counted towards hriatch:

y. • ■

V-

8.3.9. * Each MOU must:

8.3.9.1. Establish, the unponditional commitment to provide the
services, "provided that the project is selected for funding by

"  the CoC and hud;
i.-' ■ I . •

8.3.9.2. Specify the services to be provided to the project.

8.3.9.3. .List the profession of the person who will provide the
services.

v;^ 8.3.9.4., Include the hourly cost of the services.

8.3.9.5. List the grant arid fiscal year to which the in-kind match will
,, .. be contributed, i , .v..

' 873.9,6.^ Detaifthe system to be used to documenllhe actual quaritity
and value of the services provided to 'program participants
during the grant term.

8.3.10. During thegrantterm, the^actualyn-^jpc/ services'proyided to participants
must be documented.The documentation must include the following:

8.,3.10.1. Quaritity of services provided. -

8:3.1,0.2, ■ Value of the .services, ^

8.''3,i6.3". Date(s) on which the services were provided.

8.3.11. Subfecipierifs hiust reque'st inforination ifrom third-party service
providers on in-kind service match .'activity at least annually and are
respdrisibTe for verifying thatjthe match is eligible and related to p.rc^ram

• participants served in the operating year.

8.4. payment of Project Costs;

8.4.1: The ;state agree's.,tb provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for
actual,:eligible expenditure's incurred,in the,fulfillment of M^ajgreemjent,

.-•p'

!:•

'$S-2024-D8H-07-CONTI-01 V-. 'V 'C-2.0 Conlfoctof imitals. ^ ••■t
.. 6/14/2023
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and shall be in accordance with the approved, line items as specified in
the applicable Exhibit C, Budget, and as defined by HUD under the
'provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject
to the availability of sufficient funds.

,8.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as
eligible arid allowable costs as. stated in these Payment Terms.. The
Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to billing for
any other expenses. :r

8.5. Review of .the State Disallowance of Costs:

8.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of
the Annual Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial
Report, the State rriay review all Project Costs incurred by the.Contractor
and all payments made to date. ♦

'8.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of experises thai are
pot determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual
expenditures, and shall, by written. notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, informing the Contractor of any such disallowance.

8.5.3. Jf the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made,..it
shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded .to the Contractor
pursuant to. this Agreement are subject to recapture.'

8.5.4. ISotwithstanding anything to/the contrary herein, the Contractor .agrees
that.funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in
the event of non-cpn^pliance with any Federal or State law, rule or
regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services,
products, required report submissions, as detailed in this agreement,^ or
NH-Hf^!S data entry requirements, have not been .satisfactorily completed
.in accordance with,the.terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Expense Elioibilitv-. ,j ■
9.1,, Based on the opntipued receipt/avaiiability of'federal funds, the Contractor shall

utilize Continuum of Care Program funds, as specified in these Payment Terms,
from the HUD Continuum of Care.Program, for contract services.

9.2., -Operating Expenses: I
9.2.1. .Eligible operating expenses in.clude:

9.2.'1'.1. Maintenanceand repair of housing..

,9.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car)._

9.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of "major
systems of the housing (provided that the payrnents must be
based on the useful life of the systeVn and expected
reptaceitient cost).;

t]'

SS-2024-DBH-07-CONTI-01 . C-2,0 ! Conlraclof Initelsitels _L_

Cross Roads House'. Inc. Page 6 oil 4 '.1, Date
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9.2.1.4. Building security for a strucfure where more than fifty (50)
percent of the units or area is-paid for with grant funds.

9.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water.

'9.2.1.6.' Furniture and equipment. ^, y

'9.2.'2. Ineligible costs include; ... " ^

^9.2.'2.1. .Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

9.2.2.2. -Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-
only facilities. ' ^

9.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing, where the costs of
'  ̂ maintaining and repairing" the housing are included in the

lease. ' \

■> , 9.2.2.4. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible below is not
"■ ari eligible cost of ' providing supportive services using

■Continuum of Care program funds. Staff training and costs of
obtaining professional .licensure or certifications needed, to

.;pr.ovide supportive services are not eligible costs.
9.3. Supportive Services

9.3.1. Eligible supportive sen/ices costs shall compiy-with alt HUD regulations in
'  24 CFR 578.53, 'and are available to individuals actively participating in

the permanent housing program.

9.3.2. "Special populations: All eligit)le costs are eligible to the same ̂ extent for ■
program participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons
liyinrg with. HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, pr.stalking. !

9'3.3. Eligible costs shall include: ! ^'
9.3:3.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs.. The " costs of the

assessmentrequired by 578.53(a) (2).

,9.3.3.2. Assistance with rnovihg costs. Reasonable'bne-time moving
■  ̂ costs are eligible and include truck rerital and hiring a moving

company. ;

^..3;3;3, Case management. The .costs of assessing". :arranging.
"  coordinating, and | monitoring the delivery ;pf individualized

services to meet the needs bf the program iparticipanl(s) are
eligible costs. | '

■9.3.I4. Child.Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care,
and providing chiid-care vouchers, for^ children from families
experiencing honielessness. including providing- meals and
snacks, and compVehensivejnd .coordinated developmental

.  ̂ activities are eligible.

SS:2024-pBHj07eONTI-pi C-2.0
-Cross Roads House. lf>c. Pa^7of14
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'9.3.3.5. , Education Services. The- costs of improving knowledge and
, '-basic educational skills are eligible. ^

9.3.3.6. Ernployrnent assistance and job training. The costs of
establishing'and operating employment assistance and Job
training programs are eligible, including classroom, online

v"*' and/or computer instruction, .on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring"
teaming skills, and/or increasing earning potential. The cost of
providing reasonable stipends to program participants in
employment assistance and job training programs is also an
eligible cost.

'9.3.3;7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program
■ participants is eligible. .

9.3.3.8. Housing search.and counseling services. Costs of assisting
eligible program| participants to locate, obtain, .and retain

. suitable housing are eligible,

9.3.3.9. Legal services. E
attorneys and by

igible costs are the fees charged by licensed
person(s) under .the supervision of licensed

^•4 . rit

C'-

5'

-;SS-2p24-pBH4D7.CONTW1

"Cfos$ Roads House. Inc.

I

attorneys, for aclyice and representation in matters that
interfere with homeless individual or family's ability to obtain
and retain housing.

.1

9.3,3.10. Life Skills training.- The costs, of teaching critical life
management skills that may never have been learned or have

.u been lost'during course of physical or'mental illness, dornestic
violence, substan'ce abuse, and homelesshess "are eligible.
These services .must be necessary to -assist the program

.. participant to '.function Independently in the community.
Compo'nent life skills training are the budgeting of resources

-  Vand money management, household management, .conflict
tv; management,-shppping for .food .and other needed ilemSi

nutrition, the use of public transportation, and parent training.

9.3.3,1 i. :Mental Health Ser^vices. Eligible costs are the.direct putpatierit
treatment of mentarhealth conditions that are provided by
licensed professionals'. Component services are crisis

■'Interventions; counseling: individual, family, or group .therapy
sessions: 'the prescription, ;bf psychotropic medications or
explanations about the use and management of medications;
■and combinations of Therapeutic "approaches to address
multiple problems' !

9.3r3,'l2. Outpatient healthy services. Eligible costs are the direct
... outpatient treatrrieht of medical conditions whjn provided by

licensed" medical professionals'.

■9.3.3.13. Outreach Services-. The "costs of activities to engape persons
for^-The purpose of .prpyiding immediate (Support and

C-2.0
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. Contractor Iniiials

'Oala
.6/14/2023



pocuSign Envelope >0: F4A20AEF-6BA&^A7A-g41C-2S62 \ 4dD6A55
r'

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CRM

EXHIBIT C

intervention, as welj ,as identifying potential program
participants, are eligible.

,9.3.3.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program
participant intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group
and individual counseling, and drug testing are eligible,
[npatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are Ineligible.

'9.3.3.15. Transportatibn Services, as described in'24CFR 578(e) (15). '

'9,3;3.16, Utility Deposits. Thjs form of assistance consisls-pf paying for
utility deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid directly
to'Utility companies.

(9.3.3.17. Direct provision of sen/ices. If a service, described as eligible
in these Payment Terms, is being directly delivered by the
recipient or subrecjpient, eligible costs for those services also

,7 include the following:

9.3.3.17.1. . The, costs r of labor or supplies, and materials
Incurred by the recipient or subrecipient in directly
providing .supportive seivices 'to program
participants. _

9.3.3.17.2. The Mlary and benefit packages of the,recipient
.. , \ and subrecipient staff who directly sdeliver the

.seivi^s. ^
9.3.4.' ;Grant funds may be used forrental assistance for Individuals, youth, and

families experiencing homelpssness. ■;

9.3.5. Rental ^assistance cannot be'provided to a prograrh participant who.is'
already receiving rental assistance, or'living in a housing unit receiving .
rental assistance, or operating assistance through other federal . State, or
local sources'. 1

9.3.6. 'HerftaJ assistance shall be administered in accpjdance with the policies
and-procedures established by the Continuum as-set forth in 24 pFR
578.7(a) ,(9) and 24 CFR 578 51. and may be:

9.3.6.1. Short term,-up to 3 months of rent;
" I

9.3.6.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or ^

9.3.6.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

9.3.7. . Grant funds may be' used.for security deposits in'an amount hot to exceed
2 months of "rent. ] -

9.3.8. An advance payment of the .last month's rdht 'may be provided to the
land!ord,.inaddition to the se'curity deposit and paymentof first month's
rent.

^—Tqs

m/-'
SS-2024-OBH-07-CONTI-01 '' ^ C-2.0^ c",' Contraclor iniUals _
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"^3.9. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable,
as determined by the Contractor, in relation to rents being .charged for
comparable unassisted units, taking into account the location, size, type,

'  quality, amenities, facilities, and management and maintenance of" each.
-  . unit.

9.3.10. The Contractor may use grant funds in ;an amount,not to exceed one
month's rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a •

i,- program participant. For Leasing funds only; Property damages may be
paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security deposits.

,  .'9.'3.li. Housing shall be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead^Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in" which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services. •

.  9.3.i2. The Contractor shall provic
assistance: Tenant-based,

assistance as described by H

e one of the following types o? rental
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
JD in 24 CFR 578.51.

9.3.12.1. Tenant-based ren al assistance is rental assistance in which
program'participants choose housing of an appro'priafe size in
which to resid.e. When necessary to facilitate the coordination
of .supportive seo/ices, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their;
entire period of participation, o.r ;in a specific structure for.the

s;'i first year and in a specific.area for,the remainder of theirperiod
of participation. Short and .medium term rental assistance
pfpyided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component
must be tenant based rental assistance!

'9.3.12.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts
between the recipient and sponsor organization. A spo.nsor
may be a private,: nonprofit dfganizatiori, or a community
mental health agency established as a public nonprofit
organization, prdgrarh participants, must reside M.n housing

■ owned or leased by. the sponsor;

9.3.12.3. ' Project-based rental assistance Is provided through a contract
with the owner -of' an existing ̂ structure, %here the owner
agrees to lease the] subsidized units to program participants.

'  Pfbgram participants will mot retain rental assistance,'if they
rtiove. '

'9.3.12:4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental
assistance,. program participants must enter into a' lease
agreement"for a term of at least one year, which is teTifjinable,
for 'cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon

SS.2024-DBHK)7-CONTI^l

Qqss Roads House, Inc.
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expiration'for terms that are a minimum of one month long,
-■ except oh priornotice by either party.

9.4. Administrative Costs: -

9.4.1. Eligible administrative costs include;,

,9.4.1.1, The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for
the payment of project administrative costs related to the
planning'and execution of Continuum of Care activities, This
does not include staff and overhead costs'directly related to
carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through
578.57, because those costs are eligit?le as part of those
activities.

9.4.1.'2. ' General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of
overall program rrianagement, coordination, monitoring and
evaluation. These costs include, but are not limited to,
necessary expenditures for the following:

9.4.1.2.1. Salaries, wages,- and, related costs of the
Contractor's staff, or other staff engaged in

,  program adrninistration.

"  _ 9.4.1.2.2": In charging costs to this category, the Contractor
if may include the entire salary, wages, and related

.costs allocable to the program of each pemon
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the
program . .involve program administration
"assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,

.v; .wages, and related costs of each person whose
^  job jncludes any program .administration

r.- assignments. The Contractor rriay only use one of
.> * these methodsfor,each fiscal yeargrant. Program

;e: administration assignments include the .following :•

9.4.1.2.'2'.1. Preparing program budgets and
schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules.

9.4.1.2.2.2. Developing systems for assuring
compliance .with program

.j' requirements.
9.4.1 *2.2.3. Developing ' mteragency

agreements and agreements with
subrecipient and Contractors "to
-carry out program activities.

■9.4.1.2:2.4. .Monitoring program activities for
progress and. compliance ' with

• program' requirements.

fuD/I
SS-2024-OBH-07-CONTI.O1 0-2.0 Conlfador InHiats' ^
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9.5. Leasing:

SS-2024-DBH^7-CONTWl,

Cross Roads House. IfK-

9.4.1.2.2.5. Preparing reports and other
documents'related: to the program
for submission to HUD.

.9.4.1.2.2.6. Coordinating the solutio.n of audit
and^monitoring findings.

9.4.1.2.2.7. Preparing reports and other
documents directly related to the
prograrn submission to HUD.,

9.4.1:2.2.8. Evaluating program results agair)st
'  stated objectives.

9.4.i.'2.2.9. Managing^ or supervising' persons
whose primary responsibilities are
among . those program
administration assignments, as
listed imm_ediately above.

fZi

9.4.1.2.2.10. Travel. costs" incurred for official '
!  business in carrying out the
I  program.

9.4.1.2.2.11. Adrtiihistrative services performed
I  . under third party contracts of
;  agreements. including such

services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit
services. .-s

9.4.1.2.2.12. Other costs for goods and services
required ,for\administration. of the,
program, including such goods and.
services as rental or purchase of
equiprnent, insurance, , utilities,
office supplies, and rental and
rriaintenance, but not. purchase, of
office space. .

9.4.1.2.2.13. Training on Continuum, of Care
■requirements. Costs of providing
training on, Continuum of Care
■requirements and attending HUD-"
Sponsored Continuurn ;of Care
trainings.

9.4.1.2.2.14. Envirohrherital review. Costs of
1  carrying out the environmental
1  ; .review, responsibilities under 24
i  CFR 578.31'. '

C-2.0
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9.5.1.

9.5.2.

SS-2024-08H-07<;ONTI-01

Cross Roads House, inc;

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant
funds may be used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a
structure or structures, ■ or portions thereof, to provide housing or .
supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years. Leasing
funds may not be,used to lease units or structures owned by the
contractor, their parent organization, any other related organizalidn{s). or
organizations that are members of a partnership, where the partnership
owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

I-

Requirements:

9.5.2.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or
part of a structure or structures, the rent paid must be
reasonable in relation to rents being charged in the area for
comparable space.'-.ln addition, the rent paid may not exceed,
rents currently being charged by the same , owner for
comparable unassjsted space. "

9.5.2.2. Leasing individual-units. When the grant funds are used to pay
rent for individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable
in relation to rents being charged for comparable units, taking
into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may
'not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable units,
and the-rent paid may not exceed HUD-determined fair market
rents.

9.5.2^.3.' Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in 'the rent,
these utilities may be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not
provided by the landjord, these utility costs are operating cpsts,

■ except for supportive service facilities. If the structure is being
used as a supportivd service facility, then these utility costs are
a .supportive service cost. •

9.5.2.4. Security deposits {arid first arid last month's rent: The
Contractor may use|grant funds to pay security deposits, in an

"  amount not to exceed 2 months of actual rent. An. advance

payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord
in addition to security deposit and payment of the first mpnth'Sj

..rent. ' j ■ " :
9.5.2.5.- Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy

. agreements'and subleases are. required as specified in 24
GFR 578.77(a).

9.5.2.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent.. ̂ Occupancy,
charges and rent from program participants must be calculated
as provided in 24 GFR 578.77.

C-2.0
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9.5.2.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from
program participants are program Income and may be used as
provided under 24 CFR 578.97.

9.5.2.8. , Transition. Refer to 24CFB 578.49(b)(8).

9.5.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be
reasonable In comparison to rents charged In the area.for
similar housing units. Documentation of rent reasonableness
must be kept on file by the, Contractor."

9.6.2.10. 'The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUb-
determined fair market rerits.

9.5.2.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly: funds
may not be given :directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

9.5.2.rt2, Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the
.landlord for security deposits.

■  9.5.2.13. ' The Contractor cannot lease a building that it-already owns to
I  Jtself. ' • "

. 9.5.2.14. Housing mustbe in compliance with allStateand local housing
.  .w.. . codes, licensing'! ,requirements, the Lead-Based Paint-

Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other requirements of the
^  ̂ junsdlctioh ,ln which the housing is located .regarding the

condition of .the structure and operatiori of the housing or
:• 0 services.

9.6; The Contractor may charge program pjarticipants rent and utilities (heal, hot water).
However, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified
In HUD regulations (24 ~CFR 57.8'.77). Other services such as cable, air
tondltioning, telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc.^are
,at the partlcjpant's,option. I ■ . ■ -

9.7; ThV Cppntractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this'contract, or
counted as match, complete weekly.or birweekly tlmesheets.

•  Ik '

10. .'Contractor Flnancial Manaaemeht System

10.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor .shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting-
procedures that ensure proper disbursement of. and accounting for, grant funds
■arid any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds
.disbursed in direct operations of the C|Ontractor.

10.2., " The Contfactbr shall maintain a financial management system that'complies with
2 .CFR part 200.or such equivalent system as the State may require.

5-.'

SS-2q2^BH^7-CO.NTI-Ol

.Cross Roads House, Iik.
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New Hampshire Departmerit of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION REGAROING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section" 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 <Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C.701 el seq;), and fuflher.agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as ideritified in Sections
1.1.1 and 1.-12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirication:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS ••

US DEPARTMENT OF health AND HUrflAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing SectionS'5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of'1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,^
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they .will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the n.
regulatioo provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and'sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in eachjederal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is.a
material representation of fact upon which reliance'is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner -•

NH Department of Health and Human Services
-129 Pleasant Street, -'>
Concord, NH 03301-65.05

1. The grantee certifies.that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, disjribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken agajnst employees for violation of such
prohibilioit; ■ .r.. •

1.2. Establishirig an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
■ 1,2.1_. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1^2.3; Any available drug counseling, rehabilit^ibh.^arid .employee assistance programs; and

r. The,penalties that niay be imposed.upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace; . j

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engage.d in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the staterrienl.required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition.of ,.
employment under the grant, the employee will j .'
1.4.1. • Abtde'by the,terrns of the statement; and .
'1.4:2^ Notify the employer in writing of his .or her cbnvictiori for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no.later than five calenda.r days after such
conviction; _ " . ,1 ;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar (^ays after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2'from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grantofficer on vyhose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency

' vt
Exhibll D - Cettillcalion regarding Drug Free • • Vendor Inhtals

Workplace Requirements 6/14/2023
ct®HHSni07i3 c: Page'1of2. Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
,  Exhibit b

has designated a centra) point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

V6. leaking one of the following actions: within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with'lhe requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such erriployee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.T, 1.2,1.3, .1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2.. The grantee may irisert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work.done in
connection with the specific grant. ■

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, vcip code), (list each location)

"i
V'! ***.

•• *

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identihed here.

6/14/2023

Date

Vendor Name: cross Roads House, inc.

OocuSlgntd by:

I
Nagif'rVXrvelo

r?Executive Direc'tdr

cuAXKS/nori)

Ext)ibjl D - CcrtiricaliorTregarding Drug Free
'Workplace Requiremenis

Page 2 of 2

ni)/i
Vendor inilials^^

pa'te

'•S
a-

6/14/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIPICAtiON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1,12 of the General.Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE . CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
Xhild Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Pfogram under Title XIX '*
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certirtes.'td the best of his or her knowledge and belief,' that:
I  ■* ■

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection wKh the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Fedieral contract, grant. |pan, or cooperative agreement (and t>y specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor): • • ' ■

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wilt be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer of employee of Congress, or an employee ofja Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLl., (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (includirig subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrr^ipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon vi^ich reliance Was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transactio.n imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. -Any person who fails to file the required •
certificajiqn shall be subject to a civil perialty of not less than SIO.OOO and not mo_re than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Cross Roads House, Inc.

"<■ " pocuSlj««<l hjr:

6/14/2023 I
Dili ^ SlaWWKrvelo

Title: .^ 1
Executive Director

t.-:

Exhibit E - Certincation R^arding Lobbying Vendor initials 7

ovDKHS'i'iorVi Page 1 of 1

/•

6/14/2023
Dale
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rJ r- ' .63 Exhibit F
?  V

:  ̂ CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

.•=:r- • The Contractor i^fli^ned in Section 'A .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment. '
Suspension, and^ther Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as kjentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follovnng

,  Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS'FOR CERTIFICATION, ■
1.. By signing an^ubmitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing'the

certification set out below. -j

2. The inability'of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this coveried transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall subrnjt an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in"connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However.-failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.. i

3. The certification iri this clause' is a'material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS deterrnin'ed to enter into this transaction.' if it is later determined that the prospective
primary pailicipant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other, remedies
available to the-Federal Government, DHHS may terrninate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective priniary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this prjjppsal (contract) is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary participant learns..
that its cenificatipn was erroneous when subrnitted or has tiecorne erroneous by reason .of.changed

j, circumstances. • •:

5. '-The terms "covered "transaction," "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible.' "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person." 'primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal.* and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sectionsof'the rulesimplementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See-the
attached definitions.

♦,

6. The prospecUve primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a'person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
.'from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by.DHHS.

-qr • j
7: The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
'  dlause titled^G^ification Regarding Debarmerit,'Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •

Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by OHHS! without modification, iri all lower tier covered
V  •' transactiorfs and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.. -^  ̂ . . .. .. .

8^ A partrcipant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a'prospective participant in a
lower tier ce^efed transaction that il ls not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
<from the covered transaction, uriless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
'decide the rriethod and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
.tparticlpariljmay.'but is hot required to, check the Nonprocuremenl.List (of excluded parties)..

'9. Nothing contained in tfie'foregping shall be construed, to.require establishment of,a system of records.in order to rer|ler in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge.andf^^;
ExhibK F - Cerlificalioh RagaVding Debaifriehl.' Suspension Contraclor'lnilials^:^^:^:^_

'And Other Responsibilciy Mattisrs , 6/14/2023
cvoHMS/noru Page,! of 2' Oate_;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services'
•  Exhibit F

'  } I

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for trar^sactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
■ covered.transaclion knowingly enters into a lower tier covered, transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction.- in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemrhent, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default .

PRIfVIARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that'it arid Ks' '

principals: ,- . . -
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for det>arment. declared Ineligible, of'

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civij judgmerit rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection ̂ ih obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commissipn of embezzlernent.'theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State of local) unth commissiori'of any'of the offenses enumerated.in paragraph (l)(b)
of this, certification; and • [

.11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or locaj) terminated 'for cause or default.

12. Where'the prospective primary participarii Is unable to,certify to any of the statements in this
certification; such prospective participant'shall attach ah explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS I
13j By signing and subrnitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier pafticipant, as

defined in 45 CFR part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended., proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this trahsa^oii by any federal department or agency.
13.2. ' where this prospective lower tier participant is unabje to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanatio'n to this proposaffcontmct).

14. The prospective lower tier participant fufthef'^rees'by subrfilltirig this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled *^06(110031100 Regarding Dedarment. Suspehsioh, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions!" without modification in all lower tier .covered
'transactions and (n'all solicitations for lower tier'covered transactions.

Contractor Name: cross Roads House, inc.

6/14/2023

-Oe«vSioM4ev:

Date

■(Md icvtld
>^am^^«rve1o
TiUe:

Executive Director

v« f.
— 05

m

CUX)HH&110713

ExhibH F - Certificadon Regafding DebarmenJ. Suspension Contractor Initials^
: ' '.AndOlber Responsibility'Matters" 6/14/2023

12 of 2 ' Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: F4A20AFF-6BA9-4A7A-941C-2562uaD8A55

New Hampshire Department of Health and'Human Services
Exhibit G

\

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

federal NONDISCRtMINATtON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in .Sections 1.1 l.and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification; •.

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondischmlnation requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute frorh discrirninating, either in employment practices or in"
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

-the Juvenile. Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002)(42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streels Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex_. The Act includes Equal
EfTjployment Opportunity Plan requirements; p-

-,the Civii Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, wliich prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discnminating on the basjs of race, cplpr-,- pr natiorial origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), v^ich prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity; '
- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Se|c!ions 12131-34), which prohilDits
discrimination and ensures equal opportuhity-for persons with disabilities in employment, iState and local
government services, public accommodations, commerciaHacilities, and transportation; .

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination'on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age'Dlscrimination Act of 1975 (42 U-S C. Sections 6106-07), w4iich prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

i28 C.F.R, pt, 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations j- OJJDP Grant,Programs); 28 C.F.R..pl. 42
(U.S..Department of.JusUce Regulations - Nondiscriminatipn; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of thejaws for fajth^based and_comrnunity
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which proyide fuhdarnenlal principles and policy-rnaking
criteria for partnerships with falth-based^and neighborhood|organizallons;

■  f ■ I

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S; Department of Justice f^egulations,j- Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C". §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. -112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for •
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections,-which protects employees against
reprisal for certain vvhistle blowing activities'ln'connection with federal grants and contracts.

>  r , ^ ' I '
The certincate set out below is a material representation ofjfact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension.of^payments, suspension or termination of gran(s,'or govemrnent wide suspension or
debarmenl.

Exhibit G ;1 [
.. . . _ ."1 • Contractor Initials^ ■■ ■
'Cwi/icaSori ol CvivliwKa vAh r«qLir«niw>U pwtairirg 10 r«ctaBl Mondbo1rnln«lion.'Equil TfMtrn«ffi ol Fiith^dMKl Or9Wil2«ljen»

tnvu - t - 6/14/2023
R«v. ioct/14 Page1of2 _! P°tF
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Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Right^ to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the .Department of Health and Hurnan Services Office of the Ombudsman..

-t r-;

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the.following
certification:

r. By signing and submitting this,proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with,the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: cross Roads House , inc

6/14/2023

Date

n--
(Mi

by:

l

N"amef^''i'*Srvel o"
Title;

Executive Director

' .1

' Exhibit G

a  :>;•

Contractor Initials

—OS

M

iWIU

'r»v. iQr?t/i4

Ctnrictticn e< Cen>pliane« r«quir«ra«nl* pantHng lo F«4«ral Nor>4l>crV>urwtiorv Equ«t TrtMrntni oi F«ith-O«M0 Oro*niution*
ana Whl«M)to«« pnitabioAt.

!lV;.

Page 2 of 2' Dale
6/14/2023
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Srnoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for (he provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of-18, if (he services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
(Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the impositiori of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identiHed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

'1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor"agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227.vPart C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name; cross Roads House, inc

"6/14/2023

by;

(MIL dyvih

Date

Title:
Executive Director

'.y.

"V-

t:.

curoHHS/iiori3

Exhibit H - CertHicaliort Regarding
Environrnental Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

-BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreemenfagrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security"of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 appjicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of,New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

■a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Tltle'45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b.' -'Busiriess Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code,
of Federal Regulations. , •

c. "Covered Entity" has the rrteariing given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code.of Federal Regulations. .

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the, same meaning as'the'term "designated record set
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. '

-.e. "Data AoQreaatiori'-shall have the same meaning jas the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. ■ ' . !

f. 'Health Cafe Qperations'.shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"in 45 CFR Section 164.501. j
jg. "HITECH Act", means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health

Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D^, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
■■ 2009,

h. "HIPAA" m'eans.the.Health Insurance Portabiirty and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law-
104-191 and the $tandards:for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
lnfprma,tion^45 CFR Parts, 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. jv

i. "Individual" shall have the same meariing as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45-GFR Section 164^501 (g)r. . .,j

j. "Privacy Rule' shall.mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45, CFR Parts'160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Departrnent of Hjealth and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information", shall have the same rrieaning as the'term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to'|the infofrhation created or received-by
Bu_sJne.ss.Assocjate frorfi or on behalf of Covered'Entity. M

3/20U- ExhiUl I. I
Health Insurance Portab|[Iity Act-
Business Assodaie Agreement

Page 1 of 6
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). "Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103."' ~

m. "Secretary" shall rriean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
hi^er designee.

n: "Security Rule' shajl mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at.45 CFR Part 164, Sub'paii C, and amendments thereto.

t

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health inforn^ation unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
^a standards develppirtg organization that is accrefdited by the American National Standards
Institute. . •

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defineei herein shall have the meaning
established under 45iC.F.R. Parts 160,162 and.164,'as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

;ACt.

•. I

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would cohslitcite a, violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disdose PHI: ]
I. 'For the prope/ management and administration of the Business Associate:
Jl. As required by law, pursuant to the terrns set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes forjthe health care operations of Covered

Entity. ' -J
■  J ■ ■ . -

'c. To the extent Budness Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business. Associate must .obtain! prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
■reasonable assurances from the third party triat such PHI will 'be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by . jaw or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; end'(ii) an.agreem]ent from such third party to notify Business"
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA 'Privacy. Security, and Breach ^.Notification
Rules 0^ any breaches .of the confidentiality

; knowledge of such breach.
of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained

d. The Business Associate shall hof, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of-the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that itjs required by law, without fi rst notifying
Covered Entity so. that Covered Entity .has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity oBjects.to such disclosure, the

3/2014 ExhiWl I 1 Cootfactof Initial
Health Insurance Portability Act

■ Buslr>ess Assodale Agreemeni 6/14/2023■Page 2 ol 6 j bate
I  i'i
I
I
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j.":
Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all

•  remedies. '

e. If the'Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
^  be bound by additional restrictions over arid above those uses or disclosures or security

safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3| ObliQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.
i

a. The Business Associate shall notify the.Covered Entity's Privacy Officer ini'medialely
after the Business Associate becomes awarejofany use or disclosure of protected
health inforrnalion not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any secufjity incident that may have an impact on the "
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The ris'k assessment shall include, but not be^  limited to: . j

0 the nature and extent of the pro'tected health'information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re^identification;

nr.. p The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;.

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or.viewed^
0  The.e)rteht to which tbe risk to the protected health information has been •

mitigated. IrV

lij The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing .to the
Covered Entity. ... .

c. The Business ASsOOiate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, 'Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all o
and records relating to.the use and disclosure

y  received by the Business Associate on behalf
^■purposes of determining Covered Entity's .compliance wlth^lPAA and therPrivaOy.and
Security Rule.

jtsinternaj policies and procedures, books
of PHI received frorn, or created or
of Covered Entity to the Secretary for

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates thatreceive, use or have
access to PHlunder the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
feslrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covexe'd Entity
shall be.considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business, ^gpiateagreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivin^^l

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initiats
Health Insurance Pdhabiirty Act ,
Busir>e$sAssociale Agreement '6/14/2023
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I-*';

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard,
contract provisions (Pt37) of.this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity;
Business-Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

•g? ■ Within ten <10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the .
Cove'red Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to ah individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendmerit of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make suchjPHI available'to Coyered Entity for
amendment and incorporate,any such amendment to enable Coyered Entity to ̂ Ifill its
obligations under'45 CFR Section 164.526.

i: Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
•individual for an accouriting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J. Within ten (10) business days of.receiving a written request from Covered Entity for,a ,
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity friay require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance Nwith 45 CFR

) .Sectjpjl 164.528. ,

k;v In the event any individual requests access to) amendment of, of accounting of PHI .
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility'of respondingto forwarded requests. iHowevef, if forwarding the
ifidividual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy arid Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the indiyiduars request "as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity.of such response as soon as'practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of.termination of the "Agreement, for any reason,-the.
Business Associate shall returner destroy, aslspecified by Covered Entity, all PHI
"received frorri.Jor created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement.'and shall not retain any copies or|back-up tapes of such.PHI. If return or
destruction is.not feasible, Or tjie disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
'the Agreement, 'Business Associate shall continue to extend.the protections of the '• ,.\
Agreement, .to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business m

3/2014 Eichlbill Contfaclof Iniliala^
^Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate A^eement 6/14/2023
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. ,

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity .

a. Covered Entity, shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. • '

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business"Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or.45 CFR Section 164.508. '• !

I
c. Covered entity shall promptly notify BusinessjAssociate of any restrictions on the use or ■

disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of

■  RHI. ' ■ ■ M

(5) -Termination for Cause i

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terrns and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered, Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth.herein as Exhibit I. The.Covered Entity may. either immediately
terminate the.Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the .
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered .Entity. If Covered Entity,
determines that neither termination nor cure is^-feasible, Covered Entity shalI_report the
violation to.the Secretary.;

^  -V ^

(6) . Miscellaneous 'M i
f**» I

a. ■ Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise"defined herein,
shall have'lhe same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreeme'nt, as amended to Include'this Exhibit 1. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended,

'b- Amendmerit. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time' to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity jo comply with the, changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and,
Security .Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Cj.. Data Ownership. The'Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rightswith respect to the PHI provided by or created jsn behalf of Covered, Entity. ■
d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resotved

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPA^
:3/20l4 -Exhibit I

the Privacy and Security Rule,
Contractor InlUals

HeaRh Insurance Portability Act
Bwlness Associate Agrwrnent 6/14/2023
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e. Seoreaatioh. If any term or condition-of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this^Exhlbit.I.are decla/ed severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return-or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the

'• standard terms.and conditions '(P-37). shall sun/ive the .termination of the Agreement."

'IN WITNESS yVHEBEOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Heaith.and Human Services' Cross Roads House, inc.

eontractof

,(W[l ' . -

Signature of Authorized Representative Sigoatere o77Cuthorized Representative
Katja s. FOX will Ar.ve.lo

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Executive Director

Title.of Authorized Rep_resentatwe Title of Aujhorized Representative

6/14/2023 6/14/2023

Daite. Date

3/20M ExhiBH i f
Health insurance Poriabllity Act

-  Business Associate ̂ reemeni
Page 6 of S i
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■ CERTinCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILiTY AND TRANSPARENCY

•  s ACT (FFATAl COMPLIANCE

the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires-prlme awardees of Individual,
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after pctot>er 1, 2010, to report on

- data related to executive compensation and associated ftrst-tier sut^rants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over.
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Name of entity
Amount of award ■ 1
Funding agency .•> .
NAICS code for contracts t CFDA program number for grants
Program source !
Avrard title descriptiye of the purpose of the hjnding a^on
Location of the entity
Principle place pf performance
Unique identifier of-the entity (UEI #) ' . |

10. Total compensatioh and names of the top five executives if;
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemmerit, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and |.
10.2. Compensatioh information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

•• - • i ■ ' / '
Prime grant recipients must'submit FFATA r^uired data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In-v^ich
the award or award amendment is made. ,
The Contractor ideritified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act.-'pubiic Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reportng Subaward.and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, asidentified In Se^ori's 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification; I- . .
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply! with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountebjltty and Tririsparen^ • j

Contractor Name: cross Roads House, ihc

6/14/2023

~ DecuSIgn*d toy:

W(i Umld

Date Nam?WF?F7eT5"
Title:' Execufive Director

■■

a

i-r:

&

cuoHHsnioTia

J - CerttflcAlion Regarding the Federal Funding
AccounlablBty Ar>d Trenaparency Act (FFATA) Compllar)ca

Poge 1 pf 2

■V

Contractor Initials,

Data

—OS

m

6/14/2023

f  .
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the res|X)nses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

Q3R3LRNRMAC4
1. The UEI (SAM.gbv) number for.your entity Is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding complete fl̂ t year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants. sut>-grdnts, arid/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or.more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

copperative agreements?

NO YES

3.

4.

If the answer to #2 above Is NO. stop here |
If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

'  _ I
,Does the public have access to Information about foe|compensat|pn of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section -13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange'Act of "1934 (15 U.'S.C.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Ihternal Revehue Code of

1'986?

NO YES 1;
If the ansNver to #3 above is YES, stop here '•

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following: . ; "

' The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:'

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:: ••

Name:-.

Nam'e:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

II

<1

CUOHHSniOTU

Exhibit J -'CertKlcation Regardinglthe Federal Furxiir^g
Acwntability And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance

iPage 2 of 2 '
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions ' " ri

The foiiowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document: ■

1. "Breach" ■ means the ioss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,-
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any. similar term referring tC
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or. electronic. With regard to Protected. Heaith ,
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide,-National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department

r, of Comme/ce. '

3. "Confidential information" or "Confidenti_ai Data" means ,aii confidential information
'■ disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, heaith,.-financial,'public

assistance benefits arid personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health .information -and
Personally identifiable Infonnatibn.

Confideritiai Information also includes any and all infoirriatibn owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or pri'behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services- (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services, - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by

.» state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), ■ Personal .information (PI), Personal Financial
Information. (PFI), Federal, Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card industry (PCI)', and or other seinsllive.and cohfldenlial Information.

4'. "End User- means any person or entity (e.g.,, contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate,, subcontractor, .other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data-iri accordance with the term_s of.thls Contract.

'  * I ^
5. "HIPAA" means the Heaith Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the

regulations promulgated thereunder. :.

6. "Incident" means,an act tjiat potentially vblates'an explicit or Impned security policy,
which iriciudes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a'
system or its data, unvyahled disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of"
a system for the processing or storage of data': ^and chariges to system- hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or .

'consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, ioss
^  or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor initials
'M

DHHS Informatio'n y.
.Seawty RequiiWnants ^/14/2023
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have'the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or "destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit), will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,

j.. alone, or when combined with other personal.of identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such [as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. j

■  _ - I

9. "Privacy .Rule" shall mean the Standards] for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information,at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of.Health and Human-Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Weallh Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. ' ,

,r; '11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security- Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected. Health Inforrnation at 45 C.fJr. Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments
thereto. ~ I

i  •
12. "Unsecured Protected Health Informationr means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured l)y ,a;technology standard Ithat renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards d|eveloplrig organlzatiori that-'ls accredited-by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

'  . . I . .
A, Busiriess Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information: ■ ;v

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confideritial Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including b,ut not limited to all its directors; officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit .PHI in'any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule. 1

I

2. The Coritractor.must not disclose-any Confidential Information in response to a

rm
V5. Usl update 1(y09/18, EKhibH K ^ Contractof inHlais^—■ ■

DHHS Infc^ation
.  Security ftequlremenis 6/14/2023
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, .in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first oolifying "DHHS ̂  that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of RHI
pursuant tp the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be t)0und by such

.  additional restrictions and must not disclose'PHI in violation of such additional
irestrictions and^must abide by any additional security safeguards.

■4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or defivative lhere from-disclosed to ah End
User miist only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5.. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor--agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
-  of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting ito confirm compliance with the terms of this

Contract. • . .

II. methods of secure TRANSMISSION OF" DATA

1. :Applicatiori Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data .containing
Confidential Data t^etween applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an. expert knowledgeable .in cyber security and that said
.application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmisslon via the internet. .

2. Cprnputer Disks and Portable Storage .Devices. End User rnay not use computer disks
or portable storage .devices, such as "a. thurhb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. . •

■3. Encrypted Email. End User may only,employ.email to transrnit ConfidentiaT Data:if'
^email is enervated and being sent -to and being received by erhail addresses 'of
persons authorized to receive.such inforrhation.

•4. Encrypted Web Site. If .End User is erhployirig the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web .site.:must be

.secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

,5. File Hosting Services, also known as" FilSrSharlng Sites.- End User rmay hot use file
■hosting services, such as iD-''opbpx liir iGpogje Cloud Storage, tp transmit

""^Confidential Data. , ,n
'6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified•grourtb

mail within the.cohtlnental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is "employing portable devices to. transmit
-  Confidential Data sajd devices must be ehprypjed andpassword-protected.

8. ppe.h Wireless Networks. End User may.not transmit Confidential Data via an open

fW
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wireless network. .End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN.) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless neitwork.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. j . ,

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is.employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges' to prevent-inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data vyill
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will'be deleted every 24
hours). .... .

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

REtENTION AND DISF>0SIT10N OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor, will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will, have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it rnay exist, unless, otherwise required by lavv .or permitted
under this .Contract.. To this end, the parties must:

•A. Retention . ' "

u
1. The Contractor agrees it wilj not "Store, transfer or process data collected in

connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the irriplementation.of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data arid Disaster Recovery locations.'

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security mpriitoring .capabilities ar'e iti
place to detect potential security events that can Irnpact Slate of NH systems

^  and/or Department confidential iriforrnation for contractor provided systems.
3. The,Contractor agrees to provide security awareness arid education for its End'

jJsers in support of protecting Department confidential information..

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies,ofiConfidentlal Data
in a secure location arid identified in section.lV. A.2

5. Thb Contractor 'agrees C6hfideritial|; Data stored in a Cloud must be- in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply v^ath alL.applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
iCurrently-supported'and hardened dperating systerris, the latest ariti-viral, anti- '
hacker, ariti-spam, anti-spyv^re, and anti-malware utilities. The envlrpnment, as a

—OS
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation .with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the^ detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. disposition • .
)

1. If the'Contractor wijl maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery .operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or . otherwise physically, destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in .NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the'data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Departrnent
upon request. The' written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly' deslroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standarcis for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified^ within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard .copies of Confidential Data Rising a
secure rnethod such as shredding.

3. Unless ̂otherwise, specified, within thirty (30) Jays of the termination" of this
Contract, Coritfactor agrees to completely destroy all electronic .Confidential Data
by means of data.erasurevaliso known as secure data wiping.

V

IV. PROCEDURES FdR SECURITY
'4\

A Contractor "agrees to safeguard the DHHS
iderivative data .or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor, will maintain proper

Data received under this Contract, ;ahd any

security controls to protect Department
confidential.'jnformation collected,-processed, managed, and/or stored in the.delivery
of contracted services.

.2. The Contractor will maintain policies; and procedures to protect Department
confidential inforrriatioh throughout the, inforrriation lifecycle, where applicat)le, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage |and secure destruction) regardless-of the
rnedia used to.sfore the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). «
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-3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or ̂store Department confidential information
where applicable.-

4. The Contractor Will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that, can irhpact Stale of NH systems and/br.
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems. •'

5. The Contractor vvill provide regular security awareness and education for.its End
Users in support oj protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of Nevy Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or| processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a rninlmum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and'comply with all applicable
Stale of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access form's, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed .and, signed by the Contractor and any. applicable sub^ntractors prior to
'system access being.authbrized. ^

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will exec'ute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) .with the Department''and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
•agreement. '

9. The Contractor will work with the Departmeht at Its request to corhplete a Systern
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to .monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may

v- occur over the life of the'Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or.an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may| request the survey be .completed when the •'
scope of the engagement between the. Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Cpntractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly. any'State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or butsidel the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from 'the Inforrfiation Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach .Liability. In the event of any security breach ,Co.hlractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causesl of the breach, promptly take'measures to
prevent future breach and minimize ahy damage or loss" resulting'from the breach.
The State shall recover from .the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from,
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• the breach, including but nbt iimiled to: credit monitoring services, rnailing costs and
costs associated vi'ith website and telephone call center services necessary due to -
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of 'Confidential .Information, and must iri all other respects

.  maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, .provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS

■ Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and-Security Rules (45
,C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that goverri protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than;the level and scope of security requirements

.  established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procuremeht at https://www.nh.gov/doil/vend6r/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to veridors. -

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and. incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
•State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes ;a confidential information" breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of .New .
Hampshire systems thk connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.
t

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:"

a. comply with such -safeguards as referenced in Sectioti IV A. above,
implemented to project Confide'ptial Information that is furnished by DHHS
.under this. Contract'from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure..

b. safeguard this information at all tjmes.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic.devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and passwordrprotected.

•' I . . V .
d. send emails'Containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being

sent to and being received by
receive such Information.

email addresses of persons authorized to

DS

m ®
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8. ■ llmH disclosure of the Confidentiai lnformation to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Infomiation received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS ,Data. must be stored in an area tharis
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys.

.  biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End .Users may transrnit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing person|ally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidetjttial Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstahceslinvolved.

%  - - I

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone: End Users|will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through"
a third'party application. |

»

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. :DHHS •
reserves the right to conduct" onsite' insp|ections to -monitor compliance with this ,

,  Contract, including the privacy and security, requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, "
and.pther applicable lawSwand"Federa| regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in.accordance with this Contract.

"i
V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer .of any ,
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the .email addresses provided in ,
Section VI. |

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI. iri
accordance with the agency's documentedj Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and .in accordance with .42 C.Fj.R. §§ 431.300.- 306. In addition to. -and
notvvilhstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address.hpw the Contractor:wili: >.>

1. Idehtify-incidents: . .

2; Dete/rnjne if; personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirrried Incidents as required in this'Exhibit or P-37; •

4. Identify and convene a core response grpup to determine, the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

—08 yi
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5.. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and^ if so, identify appropriate
:Breach notification 'methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and-bear costs associated with the Breach notice as we!) as any mitigation
measures.

:  ' 1
Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI 'must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:2b: '

/•

VI. PERSONS.TO CONTACT '

.  .A. DHHS Privacy Officer; '

,. DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gcv .

B. DHHS Security pfficer: y'

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.g6v

Kj;;'
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